
 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
of the 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
of the 

SANTA BARBARA METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT 
A Public Agency 

Tuesday, September 6, 2022 
8:30 AM 

John G. Britton Auditorium 
550 Olive Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL OF THE BOARD MEMBERS 

Dave Davis (Chair), David Tabor (Vice Chair), Jen Lemberger (Secretary), Chuck 
McQuary (Director), Paula Perotte (Director), Arjun Sarkar (Director). 

3. REPORT REGARDING THE POSTING OF THE AGENDA 
 
4. STATUS REPORT ON THE COVID-19 STATE OF EMERGENCY (ACTION MAY BE 

TAKEN - ATTACHMENTS) 
Staff will request that the Board reconsider the circumstances of the COVID-19 State of 
Emergency. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

5. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MINUTES - (ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 
The Board of Directors will be asked to approve the draft minutes for the meeting of August 
23, 2022.  

6. CASH REPORTS - (ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 
The Board of Directors will be asked to review and approve the Cash Reports from August 
6, 2022 through August 26, 2022. 

THIS CONCLUDES THE CONSENT CALENDAR 

7. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Members of the public may address the Board of Directors on items within the jurisdiction 
of the Board that are not scheduled for public hearing.  The time allotted per speaker will 
be at the discretion of the Board Chair.  If you wish to address the Board under this item 
number, please complete and deliver to the MTD Board Clerk a “Request to Speak” form 
that includes both a description of the subject you wish to address and, if applicable, the 
agenda item number for which you would like to comment.  Additional public comment will 
be allowed during each agenda item, including closed session items.  Forms are available 
at www.sbmtd.gov and at MTD Administrative offices. 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 

 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  If you need special assistance to participate in this 
meeting, please contact the MTD Administrative Office at 805.963.3364 at least 48 hours in 
advance of the meeting to allow time for MTD to attempt a reasonable accommodation. 

8. RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION: REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATIONS (GOVERNMENT 
CODE §54956.8) – (INFORMATIONAL) 
Property: 4678 Calle Real / 149 North San Antonio Road. 

Agency Negotiators: General Manager Jerry Estrada; District Outside Counsel, Graham 
Lyons. 
 
Negotiating Parties: Con/Am Group. 

Under Negotiation: Price and terms of payment. 

9. RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION: CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL 
REGARDING ANTICIPATED LITIGATION - (ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 
The Board will meet in closed session with legal counsel for anticipated litigation 
(Significant Exposure to Litigation) pursuant to Government Code § 54956.9(d)(2). (e)(2) 
and e(3).   

Number of cases (1) – Claim Received from Brittani Williams and minor child regarding a 
bus accident on February 5, 2022.   

PUBLIC COMMENT RELATED TO CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S) WILL BE ALLOWED PRIOR 
TO RECESS 
 
10. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION TO ENTER OPTION AGREEMENT REGARDING 

MTD’S CALLE REAL PROPERTY  (ACTION MAY BE TAKEN – ATTACHMENTS) 
Staff asks that the Board of Directors receive the ad hoc committee’s unanimous 
recommendation and through adoption of the attached Resolution, approve and execute 
the attached Option Agreement with ConAm RE Investments LLC (“ConAm”).  
 

11. FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 ANNUAL RIDERSHIP & CUSTOMER SERVICE REPORT –
(INFORMATIONAL) 
Staff will provide the Board of Directors a report regarding annual ridership and customer 
service statistics for FY 2021-22. 
 

12. CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE UPDATE – (ACTION MAY BE TAKEN –
ATTACHMENT) 
Staff and MTD’s attorney request that the Board approve the recommended changes to 
the Conflict of Interest Code. 
 

13. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT – (INFORMATIONAL) 
The General Manager will report on any updates to district activities. 
 

14. OTHER BUSINESS AND REPORTS – (INFORMATIONAL) 
The Board will report on other related public transit issues and committee meetings. 
 

15. ADJOURNMENT 



 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE: SEPTEMBER 6, 2022 AGENDA ITEM: #4 

DEPARTMENT: ADMINISTRATION 

TYPE: ACTION ITEM 

PREPARED BY: JERRY ESTRADA   
 
REVIEWED BY: GENERAL MANAGER   
                           
SUBJECT: STATUS REPORT ON THE COVID-19 STATE OF EMERGENCY 

 
RECOMENDATION: 
Staff requests that the Board reconsider the circumstances of the COVID-19 State of Emergency: 

1. Consider whether state or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures 
to promote social distancing; 

2. Find that the MTD Board has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of 
emergency, and that State or  local  officials  continue  to  impose  or  recommend  
measures  to  promote social distancing; and 

3. Direct staff to continue to notice and hold hearings as remote hearings consistent with 
Government Code § 54953(e)(3). 

 
DISCUSSION: 
On January 5, 2022, Governor Gavin Newsom issued Executive Order N-1-22, which among 
other things set a date of April 1, 2022 for public agencies to transition back to public meetings 
held in full compliance with the Brown Act, including how remote participation is conducted. In 
September 2021, the California State Legislature passed, and the Governor signed, Assembly 
Bill 361 (Rivas, 2021) (AB 361), which amends the Government Code to allow Brown Act bodies 
to continue to meet remotely if certain elements are met. AB 361 took effect immediately, but 
does not supersede Executive Order N-1-22. It applies to all Brown Act boards, committees, and 
commissions. 
 
On January 31, 2020, the Secretary of Health and Human Services (HHS) declared a public health 
emergency under section 319 of the Public Health Service Act (42 USC § 247d) in response to 
COVID-19. On March 13, 2020, the US President declared a national emergency concerning the 
COVID-19 pandemic, which has been extended until February 24, 2022. On March 4, 2020, 
Governor Newsom declared a state of emergency for conditions caused by COVID-19, which has 
been extended until March 31, 2022. On March 12, 2020, the Santa Barbara County Director of 
Emergency Services proclaimed a Local Emergency as a result of the COVID-19 and the Santa 
Barbara County Health Officer declared a Local Health Emergency, due to the imminent and 
proximate threat to public health from the introduction of COVID-19. Thereafter, on March 17, 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT 

2 

2020, the Santa Barbara County Board of Supervisors ratified the Proclamation of a Local 
Emergency and the Declaration of a Local Health Emergency, which remain in effect. 
 
As of February 15, 2022, Santa Barbara County Public Health Officials continue to recommend 
utilizing teleconferencing options for public meetings as an effective social distancing measure to 
facilitate participation in public affairs and encourage participants to protect themselves and 
others from the COVID-19 disease (attached). As of August 24, 2022, the COVID-19 community 
transmission level is categorized as “High” in Santa Barbara County by the Centers for Disease 
Control & Prevention (CDC). As of June 24, 2022, the Santa Barbara County Public Health 
Department reports a case rate of 29.39 per 100,000 and a 13.7% test positivity rate. The County 
Health Officer and the California Department of Public Health continue to recommend all 
individuals wear a face covering in public indoor settings. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Health Officials AB 361 Social Distance Recommendation 

• State of California Executive Order N-1-22 



ATTACHMENT A



EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

EXECUTIVE ORDER N-1-22 

WHEREAS on March 4, 2020, I proclaimed a State of Emergency to 
exist in California as a result of the threat of COYID-19; and 

WHEREAS on March 12, 2021, I issued Executive Order N-25-20, 
paragraph 11, and on March 17, 2020, I issued Executive Order N-29-20, 
paragraph 3, waiving certain requirements that public meetings of state 
bodies occur in-person; and 

WHEREAS on June 11, 2021, I issued Executive Order N-08-21 to roll 
back certain provisions of my COVID-19-related Executive Orders and to 
clarify that other provisions remained necessary to help California respond 
to, recover from, and mitigate the impacts of the COYID-19 pandemic; 
and 

WHEREAS paragraph 42 of Executive Order N-08-21 specified that 
the waiver of requirements that public meetings of state bodies occur in
person would be valid through September 30, 2021; and 

WHEREAS on September 16, 2021, I signed into law Assembly Bill 361 
(AB 361), which amended the Government Code and Education Code to 
provide additional flexibility for state bodies to conduct public meetings 
via teleconference through January 31, 2022; and 

WHEREAS since Thanksgiving, the statewide seven-day average 
case rate has increased by 805% and the number of COVID-19 
hospitalized patients has increased by 154%; and 

WHEREAS this surge is being driven by the recent emergence of the 
Omicron variant, which has recently been estimated to account for 
approximately 70% of cases sequenced nationally; and 

WHEREAS early data suggest that the Omicron variant is more 
transmissible than the Delta variant; and 

WHEREAS requiring large numbers of individuals to gather, and 
potentially travel long distances, for in-person public meetings could 
potentially, and unnecessarily, expose numerous people to COYID-19, 
further contribute to the ongoing surge in cases caused by the Omicron 
variant, compound disruptions to our economy, and undermine public 
health measures during the current State of Emergency; and 

WHEREAS when the Legislature considered AB 361 this past fall, the 
Omicron variant had not emerged, and the virus had not demonstrated 
the ability to evade immunity; and 

WHEREAS in light of the present surge in cases due to the Omicron 
variant, and to protect the public health and safety, it is necessary to 
temporarily extend the flexibilities for state bodies to conduct 
teleconferences under AB 361 beyond January 31, 2022, to provide state 
bodies the option of conducting public meetings remotely to reduce the 
risk of in-person exposure to members of the staff body, staff, and 
members of the public; and 



WHEREAS under the provisions of Government Code section 8571, I 
find that strict compliance with the statutes specified in this Order would 
prevent, hinder, or delay appropriate actions to prevent and mitigate the 
effects of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor of the State of 
California, in accordance with the authority vested in me by the State 
Constitution and statutes, and in particular, Government Code sections 
8567, 8571, and 8627 do hereby issue the following Order to become 
effective immediately: 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT: 

1. The sunset dates in Education Code section 89305.6, subdivision 
(g), and Government Code section 11133, subdivision (g), are 
suspended until March 31, 2022. 

2. This Order shall expire at 11 :59 p.m. on April 1, 2022. 

I FURTHER DIRECT that as soon as hereafter possible, this Order be 
filed in the Office of the Secretary of State and that widespread publicity 
and notice be given of this Order. 

This Order is not intended to, and does not, create any rights or 
benefits, substantive or procedural, enforceable at law or in equity, 
against the State of California, its agencies, departments, entities, officers, 
employees, or any other person. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have 
hereunto set my hand and caused 
the Great Seal of the State of 
California to be affixed this 5th day 
of January 2022. 

GAVIN NEWSOM 
Governor of California 

ATTEST: 

SHIRLEY WEBER, PH.D. 
Secretary of State 



 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS DRAFT MINUTES 
 

SPECIAL MEETING 
of the 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
of the 

SANTA BARBARA METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT 
A Public Agency 

Monday, August 23, 2022 
8:30 AM 

John G. Britton Auditorium 
550 Olive Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  

Chair Dave Davis called the meeting to order at 8:30 AM. 
 
2. ROLL CALL OF THE BOARD MEMBERS  

Chair Davis reported that all members were present except Director Perotte. 
 

3. REPORT REGARDING POSTING OF AGENDA  
Lilly Gomez, Interim Clerk of the Board and Marketing and Community Relations 
Coordinator reported that the agenda was posted on Thursday, August 18, 2022, at MTD’s 
Administrative office, mailed and emailed to those on the agenda list, and posted on MTD’s 
website. 
 

4. STATUS REPORT ON THE COVID-19 STATE OF EMERGENCY (ACTION MAY BE 
TAKEN - ATTACHMENTS)  
The Board reconsidered the circumstances of the COVID-19 State of Emergency. 
 
Director McQuary moved to approve staff’s recommendation to continue to allow noticing 
and holding remote hearings, consistent with Government Code § 54953(e)(3).   
Secretary Lemberger seconded the motion.  Chair Davis held a roll call vote and the 
consent calendar was approved unanimously. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
5. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MINUTES - (ATTACHMENT - ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 

The Board of Directors was asked to approve the draft minutes for the meeting of August 
1, 2022 

 
6. CASH REPORT - (ATTACHMENT - ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 

The Board of Directors will be asked to review and approve the Cash Reports from July 
23, 2022 through August 5, 2022. 
 
Vice Chair Tabor moved to approve the consent calendar. Director McQuary seconded 
the motion. Chair Davis held a roll call vote and the consent calendar was approved 
unanimously. 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS DRAFT MINUTES 

2 

 
THIS CONCLUDES THE CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
7. PUBLIC COMMENT 

No public comments were made. 
 

8. OTHER BUSINESS AND REPORTS (ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 
General Manager Jerry Estrada requested two volunteers from the Board of Directors to 
participate in an Ad Hoc committee assisting management with recommendations related 
to unrepresented employees compensation and job classifications.   
 
Secretary Lemberger and Vice Chair Tabor Volunteered.  
 

9. RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION: REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATIONS (GOVERNMENT 
CODE §54956.8) (ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 
Property: 4678 Calle Real / 149 North San Antonio Road. 

Agency Negotiators: General Manager Jerry Estrada; District Outside Counsel, Graham 
Lyons. 
 
Negotiating Parties: Con/Am Group. 

Under Negotiation: Price and terms of payment. 

No public comments regarding the Closed Session item were made prior to recess. 
 

Chair Davis recessed the Board to Closed Session at 8:33 AM. 
 

The Board reconvened from Closed Session at 9:20 AM.  Chair Davis reported that no 
action had been taken on this item. 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:21 AM. 



Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District

Board Meeting of September 6, 2022
Cash Report

For the Period August 6, 2022 through August 26, 2022

$3,820,255.50

MONEY MARKET

Beginning Balance August 6, 2022

Passenger Fares 125,550.31
Accounts Receivable 15,832.90
Miscellaneous Income 591.34

141,974.55Total Deposits

27.27Bank & Credit Card Fees
(12,585.34)Miscellaneous Transfers
(60,071.53)401(k)/Pension Transfer

(295,763.98)Payroll Taxes
(664,662.89)Payroll

(1,107,956.50)Accounts Payable

(2,141,012.97)Total Disbursements

$1,821,217.08Total Cash and Investments as of August 26, 2022:

CASH INVESTMENTS 

WC / Liability Reserves ($4,759,470.85)

Ending Balance

1,821,217.08

Working Capital                                                      

LAIF Account $5,902,708.48

Total Cash Balance $7,723,925.56

Money Market Account

$2,964,454.71

SELF INSURED LIABILITY ACCOUNTS

26-Aug-22Cash Report Cover Sheet 16:41



Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District
Cash Receipts of Accounts Receivable

Date Company Description Amount

8/11/2022 County of Santa Barbara            Passes/Token Sales                                               780.00

8/16/2022 Idea Engineering, Inc.             Advertising on Buses                                             1,572.30

8/22/2022 Moonlight Graphics/Mktg            Advertising on Buses                                             5,364.00

8/24/2022 Wells Marketing, LLC               Advertising on Buses                                             1,731.60

8/24/2022 Wells Marketing, LLC               Advertising on Buses                                             225.00

8/24/2022 Wells Marketing, LLC               Advertising on Buses                                             1,328.40

8/26/2022 Montecito Bank & Trust             Advertising on Buses                                             2,722.00

8/26/2022 True Media LLC/Cottage Health      Advertising on Buses                                             1,054.80

8/26/2022 True Media LLC/Cottage Health      Advertising on Buses                                             1,054.80

$15,832.90Total Accounts Receivable Paid During Period

8/26/2022 3:47:16 PMCash Report Accounts Receivable Printed



Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District 
Accounts Payable

Check # Date Company Description Amount Voids

  130131 8/12/2022 ABC BUS COMPANIES INC              BUS PARTS                                                   1,100.39  

  130132 8/12/2022 ALBERTO CALVILLO                   RETIREE HEALTH REIMURSEMENT      116.91  

  130133 8/12/2022 AMERICAN MOVING PARTS, LLC   BUS PARTS                                                   150.94  

  130134 8/12/2022 HENRY ANDREWS                      RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    285.00  

  130135 8/12/2022 MARIO R. BEAS                      HR CONSULTANT                                       6,360.00  

  130136 8/12/2022 JAMES BRACKETT                     RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    178.00  

  130137 8/12/2022 KARL BRETZ                         RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    254.50  

  130138 8/12/2022 BUNNIN CHEVROLET CADILLAC    SERVICE VEHICLE MAINTENANCE       928.42  

  130139 8/12/2022 ARTHUR BURNS                       RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    239.00  

  130140 8/12/2022 ROBERT BURNHAM                     RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    285.00  

  130141 8/12/2022 BYD COACH & BUS LLC                BUS PARTS                                                   460.73  

  130142 8/12/2022 MIKE CARDONA                       RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    490.00  

  130143 8/12/2022 COASTAL VIEW NEWS   DBA           EMPLOYMENT ADS 644.00  

  130144 8/12/2022 CHK AMERICA INC.                   SCHEDULE INFO & SYSTEM MAP           2,865.56  

  130145 8/12/2022 COMPLETE COACH WORKS             FLEET RENEWAL CAMPAIGN                  23,902.58 V

  130146 8/12/2022 COX COMMUNICATIONS, CORP.     INTERNET & CABLE TV                            538.72  

  130147 8/12/2022 CUMMINS SALES & SERVICE    dba BUS PARTS & REPAIRS                              65,985.97  

  130148 8/12/2022 NANCY CURTIS                       RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    222.86  

  130149 8/12/2022 CROSSLINE SUPPLY LLC               BUS PARTS                                                   424.13  

  130150 8/12/2022 DAVE BANG ASSOCIATES, INC.       BUS BENCHES, TRASH RECEPTACLES  8,654.04  

  130151 8/12/2022 EDWARDS CONSTRUCTION GROU CHARGE READY BRIDGE                         36,277.17  

  130152 8/12/2022 EDM TECHNOLOGY, INC                BUS PASS PRINTING                                  12,500.00  

  130153 8/12/2022 ESP LOCKSMITH             DBA      B&G REPAIRS & SUPPLIES                       110.00  

  130154 8/12/2022 FEDEX         dba                  FREIGHT CHARGES                                    96.17  

  130155 8/12/2022 GIBBS INTERNATIONAL INC            BUS PARTS                                                   722.58  

  130156 8/12/2022 GILLIG LLC                         BUS PARTS                                                   4,580.42  

  130157 8/12/2022 GARY GLEASON                       RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    247.95  

  130158 8/12/2022 GLOBAL EQUIPMENT COMPANY    B&G REPAIRS & SUPPLIES                       84.71  

  130159 8/12/2022 GOLETA WATER DISTRICT              UTILITIES                                                     209.86  

  130160 8/12/2022 JILL GRISHAM                       RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    285.00  

  130161 8/12/2022 GUARDIAN-APPLETON (DENTAL I DENTAL INSURANCE                                4,009.67  

  130162 8/12/2022 GUARDIAN-APPLETON (LIFE INS)  LIFE INSURANCE                                        981.84  

  130163 8/12/2022 ALI HABIBI                         RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    285.00  

  130164 8/12/2022 RICHARD HARRIGAN                   RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    122.00  

  130165 8/12/2022 ROBERT HARTMAN, JR.                RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    276.98  

  130166 8/12/2022 HOME IMPROVEMENT CTR.             SHOP/B&G SUPPLIES                                 33.04  

  130167 8/12/2022 IMPULSE ADVANCED COMMUNIC INTERNET                                                     400.00  

  130168 8/12/2022 INTELLICORP RECORD INC.            PRE-EMPLOYMENT CHECK                     21.80  

15:4626-Aug-22Accounts Payable Check Register



Check # Date Company Description Amount Voids

  130169 8/12/2022 DONALD JACKSON                     RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    356.00  

  130170 8/12/2022 LOUIS JONES                        RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    89.00  

  130171 8/12/2022 LANSPEED                   DBA     IT SERVICES                                                 2,853.15  

  130172 8/12/2022 MC CORMIX CORP. (OIL)              LUBRICANTS                                               136.80  

  130173 8/12/2022 MC CORMIX CORP. (GAS)              FUEL-SERVICE VEHICLES                        2,159.82  

  130174 8/12/2022 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO.       SHOP/B&G SUPPLIES                                 332.24  

  130175 8/12/2022 MOUNTAIN SPRING WATER             SHOP & OFFICE SUPPLIES                        1,017.60  

  130176 8/12/2022 WILLIAM MORRIS                     RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    230.80  

  130177 8/12/2022 NATIONAL TESTING NETWORK, I DRIVER TRAINING                                     405.00  

  130178 8/12/2022 NEWEGG BUSINESS, INC               IT EQUIPMENT & SUPPLIES                     1,745.98  

  130179 8/12/2022 NFI PARTS      DBA                 BUS PARTS                                                   194.39  

  130180 8/12/2022 PREVOST CAR (US) INC.              BUS/SERVICE VEHICLE PARTS               2,549.22  

  130181 8/12/2022 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS    DBA         BUS/SERVICE VEHICLE PARTS               467.16  

  130182 8/12/2022 CARLOS ORNELAS                     RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    300.00  

  130183 8/12/2022 PETTY CASH - MANNY CASTANON MISC. PURCHASES                                     158.07  

  130184 8/12/2022 CAREY POINDEXTER                   RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    285.00  

  130185 8/12/2022 AL ROMERO SR.                      RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    89.00  

  130186 8/12/2022 ROBERT HALF                        TEMPORARY LABOR                                 2,628.00  

  130187 8/12/2022 SAFETY-KLEEN CORPORATION      SHOP SUPPLIES                                           499.64  

  130188 8/12/2022 SANSUM CLINIC                      MEDICAL EXAMS                                       135.00  

  130189 8/12/2022 SB COUNTY FEDERAL CREDIT UNI PAYROLL DEDUCTION                              260.00  

  130190 8/12/2022 SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MGMENT HEALTH INSURANCE                                58,002.39  

  130191 8/12/2022 SEIFERT GRAPHICS, INC.             BUS PARTS                                                   129.00  

  130192 8/12/2022 SET SOLUTIONS, INC.                IT SERVICES                                                 3,330.48  

  130193 8/12/2022 SM TIRE, CORP.                     BUS TIRE MOUNTING                                907.99  

  130194 8/12/2022 ROBIN SORIA                        RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    570.00  

  130195 8/12/2022 STANTEC ARCHITECTURE INC.       FACILITIES A&E SERVICES                      13,101.71  

  130196 8/12/2022 TEAMSTERS MISC SECURITY TRU UNION MEDICAL INSURANCE                183,679.00  

  130197 8/12/2022 TEAMSTERS PENSION TRUST          UNION PENSION                                         82,925.40  

  130198 8/12/2022 TEAMSTERS UNION LOCAL NO. 18 UNION DUES                                                8,809.04  

  130199 8/12/2022 TAC ENERGY LLC                     RENEWABLE DIESEL                                 76,375.37  

  130200 8/12/2022 J.C.M. AND ASSOCIATES INC.         UNIFORMS                                                    99.74  

  130201 8/12/2022 VALLEY POWER SYSTEMS, INC.     BUS PARTS                                                   351.44  

  130202 8/12/2022 JOHN J. VASQUEZ                    RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    231.44  

  130203 8/12/2022 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE PROGRA BUS PARTS                                                   78.84  

  130204 8/12/2022 ALEXANDER YOUNG                    RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    237.85  

  130205 8/18/2022 ABC BUS COMPANIES INC              BUS PARTS                                                   592.15  

  130206 8/18/2022 AMERICAN MOVING PARTS, LLC   BUS PARTS                                                   1,145.42  

  130207 8/18/2022 APTA                               MEMBERSHIP DUES                                   26,000.00  

  130208 8/18/2022 ASBURY ENVIRONMENTAL SERVI WASTE OIL RECYCLER                             95.00  

  130209 8/18/2022 BROWN & BROWN INSURANCE SE CYBER LIABILITY INSURANCE 16,647.00  

15:4626-Aug-22Accounts Payable Check Register



Check # Date Company Description Amount Voids

  130210 8/18/2022 BYD COACH & BUS LLC                BUS PARTS                                                   1,291.58  

  130211 8/18/2022 BYD MOTORS LLC                     CAPITAL LEASE PAYMENT                      31,625.22  

  130212 8/18/2022 CENTRAL COAST TANK TESTING   TANK TESTS                                                1,005.00  

  130213 8/18/2022 CROCKER REFRIGERATION & AIR HVAC MAINTENANCE                               1,915.92  

  130214 8/18/2022 CUMMINS SALES & SERVICE    dba BUS PARTS & REPAIRS                              64,330.44  

  130215 8/18/2022 DAVID DAVIS JR.                    DIRECTOR FEES                                          120.00  

  130216 8/18/2022 EASY LIFT TRANSPORTATION, IN MONTHLY ADA SUBSIDY                         88,399.00  

  130217 8/18/2022 EVERSHADE LLC       DBA            STEAM CLEANING TC/EXPRESS ZONE 2,900.00  

  130218 8/18/2022 FRONTIER CALIFORNIA INC.           TELEPHONE SERVICE                               2,031.18  

  130219 8/18/2022 GIBBS INTERNATIONAL INC            BUS PARTS                                                   1,198.27  

  130220 8/18/2022 GILLIG LLC                         BUS PARTS                                                   4,035.21  

  130221 8/18/2022 GOGETTERS, LLC      DBA            COURIER SERVICES                                   110.00  

  130222 8/18/2022 GOLD COAST TRANSPORT REFRIG BUS A/C MAINTENANCE                           424.39  

  130223 8/18/2022 HOME IMPROVEMENT CTR.             SHOP/B&G SUPPLIES                                 63.68  

  130224 8/18/2022 JAVIER JIMENEZ                     RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    267.00  

  130225 8/18/2022 JOY EQUIPMENT PROTECTION, IN SERVICING FIRE EXTINGUISHERS         125.00  

  130226 8/18/2022 JENNIFER LEMBERGER                 DIRECTOR FEES                                          60.00  

  130227 8/18/2022 MARBORG INDUSTRIES (INC)          UTILITIES & RENTAL FEES                      235.50  

  130228 8/18/2022 MC CORMIX CORP. (OIL)              LUBRICANTS                                               2,981.89  

  130229 8/18/2022 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO.       SHOP/B&G SUPPLIES                                 283.66  

  130230 8/18/2022 CHUCK MCQUARY                      DIRECTOR FEES                                          120.00  

  130231 8/18/2022 MISSION LINEN SUPPLY, INC          UNIFORM & LINEN SERVICE                   1,104.06  

  130232 8/18/2022 MOHAWK MFG. AND SUPPLY CO.  BUS PARTS                                                   381.21  

  130233 8/18/2022 NFI PARTS      DBA                 BUS PARTS                                                   326.15  

  130234 8/18/2022 PREVOST CAR (US) INC.              BUS/SERVICE VEHICLE PARTS               459.71  

  130235 8/18/2022 PAULA A. PEROTTE                   DIRECTOR FEES                                          120.00  

  130236 8/18/2022 THE PITNEY BOWES BANK INC       POSTAGE CREDIT LINE                             735.47  

  130237 8/18/2022 LINDE GAS & EQUIPMENT INC        SHOP SUPPLIES                                           434.76  

  130238 8/18/2022 PREMIER WIRELESS SOLUTIONS, I IT EQUIPMENT                                            3,410.10  

  130239 8/18/2022 ROBERT HALF                        TEMPORARY LABOR                                 1,460.00  

  130240 8/18/2022 SARKAR, ARJUN                      DIRECTOR FEES                                          60.00  

  130241 8/18/2022 SANTA BARBARA NEWSPRESS    D PUBLIC NOTICE/SCHEDULE GUIDES 90.00  

  130242 8/18/2022 SET SOLUTIONS, INC.                IT SERVICES                                                 1,835.17  

  130243 8/18/2022 SMARDAN-HATCHER CO., INC        B&G REPAIRS & SUPPLIES                       52.91  

  130244 8/18/2022 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERC OFFICE SUPPLIES                                       555.71  

  130245 8/18/2022 SB CITY OF-REFUSE/WATER            UTILITIES                                                     451.59  

  130246 8/18/2022 SB COUNTY-AUDITOR/CONTROLL LAFCO BUDGET PRO RATA SHARE       6,260.00  

  130247 8/18/2022 T&H COMPRESSOR REPAIR CO, IN COMPRESSOR REPAIRS                            660.00  

  130248 8/18/2022 DAVID T. TABOR                     DIRECTOR FEES                                          120.00  

  130249 8/18/2022 TAC ENERGY LLC                     RENEWABLE DIESEL                                 38,435.36  

  130250 8/18/2022 VALLEY POWER SYSTEMS, INC.     BUS PARTS                                                   2,234.23  

15:4626-Aug-22Accounts Payable Check Register



Check # Date Company Description Amount Voids

  130251 8/18/2022 VERIZON WIRELESS                   WIRELESS PHONES & AIM CELLULAR  1,376.64  

  130252 8/18/2022 WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY      DBA JANITORIAL SUPPLIES                              1,939.26  

  130253 8/26/2022 ABC BUS COMPANIES INC              BUS PARTS                                                   1,597.99  

  130254 8/26/2022 BICKMORE ACTUARIAL    DBA       WC ACTUARIAL REVIEW                         2,250.00  

  130255 8/26/2022 COMPLETE COACH WORKS             FLEET RENEWAL CAMPAIGN                  23,902.58  

  130256 8/26/2022 CINTAS CORPORATION                 FIRST AID SUPPLIES                                  312.18  

  130257 8/26/2022 CUMMINS SALES & SERVICE    dba BUS PARTS & REPAIRS                              3,539.73  

  130258 8/26/2022 CROSSLINE SUPPLY LLC               BUS PARTS                                                   957.00  

  130259 8/26/2022 DENMUN OFFICE SOLUTIONS   DB IT CONTRACT SERVICES                          6,630.00  

  130260 8/26/2022 EVERSHADE LLC       DBA            STEAM CLEANING TC/EXPRESS ZONE 1,100.00  

  130261 8/26/2022 FEDEX         dba                  FREIGHT CHARGES                                    32.98  

  130262 8/26/2022 GENFARE LLC                        FAREBOX REPAIRS & PARTS                   1,334.66  

  130263 8/26/2022 GIBBS INTERNATIONAL INC            BUS PARTS                                                   852.25  

  130264 8/26/2022 GILLIG LLC                         BUS PARTS                                                   2,023.52  

  130265 8/26/2022 GOODYEAR TIRE & RUBBER CO     BUS TIRE LEASE                                         508.99  

  130266 8/26/2022 LAWRENCE GOMOLL                    CERTIFICATION REIMBURSEMENT 84.00  

  130267 8/26/2022 GRAINGER, INC.                     SHOP/B&G SUPPLIES                                 159.08  

  130268 8/26/2022 GRAYBAR ELECTRIC COMPANY, I REPAIRS & SUPPLIES T1 BLDG/GRDS    359.01  

  130269 8/26/2022 HI-LINE ELECTRIC COMPANY, INC BUS PARTS                                                   382.93  

  130270 8/26/2022 LAWSON PRODUCTS INC                SHOP SUPPLIES                                           1,712.81  

  130271 8/26/2022 LA CUMBRE FEED, INC.               SOFT WATER SYSTEM SUPPLIES           448.78  

  130272 8/26/2022 MC CORMIX CORP. (OIL)              LUBRICANTS                                               1,500.95  

  130273 8/26/2022 MC CORMIX CORP. (GAS)              FUEL-SERVICE VEHICLES                        1,712.16  

  130274 8/26/2022 MURPHY ELECTRIC MAINTENANC ELECTRICAL REPAIRS/INSTALLATION 112.00  

  130275 8/26/2022 NATIONAL DRIVE                     PAYROLL DEDUCTION                              22.00  

  130276 8/26/2022 NATIONAL INTERSTATE INS INC.   LIABILITY INSURANCE                             62,204.03  

  130277 8/26/2022 NEOPART TRANSIT LLC                BUS PARTS                                                   515.52  

  130278 8/26/2022 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS    DBA         BUS/SERVICE VEHICLE PARTS               48.84  

  130279 8/26/2022 PITNEY BOWES, INC                  POSTAGE SUPPLIES                                   36.96  

  130280 8/26/2022 SB COUNTY FEDERAL CREDIT UNI PAYROLL DEDUCTION                              260.00  

  130281 8/26/2022 SANTA BARBARA NEWSPRESS    D PUBLIC NOTICE/SCHEDULE GUIDES 13,540.51  

  130282 8/26/2022 SANTA MARIA SUN                    EMPLOYMENT ADS                                   612.00  

  130283 8/26/2022 SILVAS OIL CO., INC.               LUBRICANTS                                               1,344.97  

  130284 8/26/2022 SMART & FINAL                      OFFICE/MEETING SUPPLIES                    284.75  

  130285 8/26/2022 SO. CAL. EDISON CO.                UTILITIES                                                     10,739.05  

  130286 8/26/2022 SOCALGAS                           UTILITIES                                                     175.69  

  130287 8/26/2022 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES CONSULTING SERVICES                           13,244.93  

  130288 8/26/2022 STEWART'S DE-ROOTING & PLUM PLUMBING REPAIRS                                  380.00  

  130289 8/26/2022 SB CITY OF-REFUSE/WATER            UTILITIES                                                     2,804.60  

  130290 8/26/2022 TEAMSTERS UNION LOCAL NO. 18 UNION DUES                                                274.00  

  130291 8/26/2022 TAC ENERGY LLC                     RENEWABLE DIESEL                                 38,371.32  

15:4626-Aug-22Accounts Payable Check Register



Check # Date Company Description Amount Voids

  130292 8/26/2022 UNITED WAY OF SB                   PAYROLL DEDUCTION                              35.00  

  130293 8/26/2022 J.C.M. AND ASSOCIATES INC.         UNIFORMS                                                    1,424.60  

  130294 8/26/2022 U.S. BANK CORP. PAYMENT SYST CREDIT CARD PURCHASES                      1,685.72  

  130295 8/26/2022 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE PROGRA BUS PARTS                                                   702.35  

  130296 8/26/2022 WAGER COMPANY   DBA                EQUIPMENT REPAIR                                  41.30  

  130297 8/26/2022 YACO SCHOLARSHIP FUND              PAYROLL DEDUCTION                              40.00  

1,131,859.08

23,902.58

$1,107,956.50

Prior Cash Report Voided Checks: 0.00

Current Cash Report Voided Checks:

Grand Total:

15:4626-Aug-22Accounts Payable Check Register



 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE: SEPTEMBER 6, 2022 AGENDA ITEM:  #10 

DEPARTMENT: PROCUREMENT 

TYPE: ACTION ITEM 

PREPARED BY: JERRY ESTRADA ____________________ 
                     Signature            
 
REVIEWED BY: GENERAL MANAGER ____________________  
                     Signature            
 
SUBJECT: ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION TO ENTER OPTION AGREEMENT 

REGARDING MTD’S CALLE REAL PROPERTY   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff asks that the Board of Directors receive the ad hoc committee’s unanimous recommendation 
and through adoption of the attached Resolution, approve and execute the attached Option 
Agreement with ConAm RE Investments LLC (“ConAm”).  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Property History  
 
MTD owns four legal parcels totaling approximately 18.93 acres in the unincorporated area of 
Santa Barbara County (“Property”).  MTD purchased the Property in 1985 with the intent to one 
day develop a bus terminal; however, MTD acquired another site for that purpose and the Property 
became available for alternative uses.  Through a series of planning efforts by the County of Santa 
Barbara and with the support of MTD, the Property is designated by the County as one of two 
primary housing opportunity sites in the Eastern Goleta Valley Community Plan and is zoned as 
follows:  10.2 acres (DR-20), 6.8 acres (DR-0.2) and the approximately 1.93 acre western-most 
parcel is zoned DR-20.   
 
California Public Utilities Code Section 99420 authorizes MTD to enter into agreements with 
private developers for the “joint development” of real property.  The purpose of the joint 
development may be for residential use that fosters transit use or the integration of land use and 
transportation.  “Joint development” includes the joint planning of property related to transit 
facilities operated by MTD.  The proposed Option facilitates the joint planning of a transit-oriented 
development project adjacent to MTD’s Service Line #7.  The Option Agreement facilitates a 
potential joint development of the Property by MTD and ConAm.  The proposed development 
would be a transit-oriented, multifamily rental housing project adjacent to MTD’s Service Line #7 
that provides additional ridership for MTD’s existing service lines and allows MTD the opportunity 
to expand existing service throughout its service area.   



BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT 

2 
 

MTD’s participation in the joint development would be limited to the joint planning of the project.  
Through the RFQ/RFP process discussed below, MTD and ConAm agreed on the type of 
residential development, the approximate number of units, the required level of affordability, and 
the required amenities so the development will integrate MTD’s existing Service Line #7, as well 
as the ability to access other MTD lines.  ConAm would be responsible for the entitlement, 
construction, operation, and maintenance of the project.  MTD will not provide financing for the 
project or participate in the construction, operation, or maintenance of the project.   
 
Formation of Ad Hoc Committee 
 
After much deliberation and study, the MTD Board of Directors determined that the highest and 
best use of the Property was as a transit-oriented residential housing project.  Given the Property’s 
designation as a priority housing site, a multi-family residential housing project aligns with the 
County’s planning designation and MTD’s desire to increase ridership in the Eastern Goleta 
Valley.  The Property’s location in Eastern Goleta Valley between Isla Vista, the City of Goleta, 
and the City of Santa Barbara makes it an optimal site to increase and foster new MTD services 
and activate many of the existing lines through unincorporated Santa Barbara County. 
 
The MTD Board of Directors formed an ad hoc committee for the specific and limited purpose of 
reviewing development proposals for the Property and recommending to the Board a 
development team for the joint development of the Property.  Since its formation by the Board, 
the ad hoc committee directed the solicitation of development proposals for the Property and 
retained a team of consultants to assist in the review of development proposals.  The ad hoc 
committee completed its solicitation of proposals through a public RFQ/RFP process and 
conducted a series of interviews with each development team in conjunction with the ad hoc 
committee’s consultants.  The ad hoc committee then recommended that the Board enter an 
Exclusive Negotiating Agreement (“ENA”) with ConAm to allow the parties to negotiate the terms 
and conditions of an option agreement and ground lease agreement.  The following is a summary 
of the RFP/RFQ process and MTD’s selection of ConAM. 
 
RFQ Process 
 
On August 17, 2020, MTD issued a Combined Request for Qualifications/Request for Proposals 
(RFQ/RFP) to identify a potential development team to jointly develop and construct a transit-
oriented residential project at the Property to provide housing consistent with the County’s Eastern 
Goleta Valley Community Plan and MTD’s purpose as a public transit district.  The RFQ/RFP 
called for proposals to develop and operate a transit-oriented multifamily project that would 
increase MTD ridership and provide an opportunity for MTD to expand its services throughout its 
service area.   
 
MTD received three submittals to the RFQ/RFP.  Based on a review of the three RFQ submittals, 
the ad hoc committee determined that all three development teams were responsive to the RFQ 
requirements, and therefore, each submittal was reviewed in the RFP phase. 
 
RFP Process 
 
At the conclusion of the RFQ review phase, the ad hoc committee and its consultants reviewed 
each team’s development proposal for the Property.  After the ad hoc committee and its 
consultants’ initial review, each development team was asked a series of follow up questions 
related to their respective development proposals.  After each development team had the 
opportunity to respond to the ad hoc committee and its consultants’ follow up questions, the teams 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT 

3 
 

were invited to participate in in-person (via Zoom) interviews with the ad hoc committee and its 
consultants.  Each team presented its proposal and answered questions from the ad hoc 
committee.   
 
Based on the extensive RFQ and RFP process, the ad hoc committee recommended to the MTD 
Board of Directors that the Board authorize its general manager to enter an Exclusive Negotiating 
Agreement (“ENA”) with ConAm. 
 
MTD’s evaluation of the three responding developers can be found in MTD’s Staff Report dated 
December 22, 2020.  
 
After execution of the ENA, MTD and ConAm negotiated the terms and conditions of the Option 
Agreement and Ground Lease Agreement, which are before the Board for its review and approval.   
 
The Project 
 
Based on the project parameters set by MTD in the RFQ/RFP, ConAm has proposed a transit-
oriented development project with approximately 333 residential rental units with not less than 
15% of the total units affordable to very-low, low-, and moderate-income households.  The 
affordable units would be income-restricted through recorded long-term covenants and integrated 
throughout the overall project site.  The project would include onsite amenities for the residents 
and an after-school learning center.  The project would be adjacent to MTD’s Service Line #7 and 
provide new transit riders, as well as the opportunity for MTD to expand its operations throughout 
its service area.  Additional information regarding the project can be found in MTD’s Staff Report 
dated December 22, 2020. 
 
The project must be reviewed and approved by the County of Santa Barbara and other 
government agencies with jurisdiction over the property.  During the permitting process and the 
required environmental review, the size, scope, and scale of the project may change.  As 
discussed below, the Option and Ground Lease provide for such changes in the project. 
 
Option Agreement 
 
An “option to ground lease agreement” is a written agreement between two parties specifying a 
period in which the “optionee” is provided the exclusive opportunity to enter a long-term ground 
lease, subject to certain terms and conditions.  Here, the Option will allow ConAm time to 
investigate the Calle Real property, process the necessary entitlements, complete the required 
environmental review, and secure the financing to develop the project contemplated by the 
parties.  Because the Option allows for the possibility of the parties entering a long-term ground 
lease (“Ground Lease”), the Option includes as an exhibit the form long-term ground lease that 
would be entered into if ConAm exercises the Option.  If ConAm does not meet the terms and 
conditions of the Option or elects not to exercise the option, the Option would terminate, and the 
Ground Lease would not be entered into by the parties.  If ConAm does not exercise the Option 
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Option, MTD may select another development team 
to enter negotiations. 
 
The Option provides ConAm thirty months to exercise its option to enter the Ground Lease.  
During the first eighteen months of the Option term, ConAm will (i) complete its due diligence of 
the property; (ii) prepare and submit to the County an application for the project; and (iii) receive 
an application completeness determination from the County.  Before it can exercise the Option, 
ConAm must obtain all discretionary approvals and provide evidence that it has secured sufficient 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT 

4 
 

financial resources to develop the project.  ConAm can extend the term of the Option through 
additional payments.  
 
The Option cannot be exercised unless ConAm receives all discretionary approvals from the 
applicable government agencies, including compliance with the California Environmental Quality 
Act, which is a condition precedent to ConAm exercising the Option.  The Option does not allow 
or authorize any development of the property but instead provides ConAm a period of time to 
decide whether it wants to develop the property, and if it does, time to gain all permits and 
complete all CEQA review.  If ConAm is unable to obtain the necessary entitlements or does not 
complete the required CEQA review, it cannot exercise the option.   
 
Because the project has not been reviewed or approved by the County, the project is subject to 
revision.  The Option allows for revisions to the project but requires certain components do not 
change so the project meets MTD’s stated goals for the property.  For example, the number of 
units may change but the project must provide no less than 15% of the total number of units as 
affordable, income-restricted units integrated throughout the project and facilitate access to 
MTD’s transit line #7 on Calle Real.   
 
During the Option, ConAm will pay MTD $25,000 per calendar quarter, plus up to an additional 
$30,000 per calendar quarter if ConAm requests one or more extensions of the Option term. 
 
Ground Lease 
 
From a financial perspective, MTD’s stated goal for developing the Property is to achieve a long-
term financial return while minimizing risk.  MTD considered an outright sale of the Property or a 
long-term ground lease to a third party.  An outright sale of the Property could minimize risk to 
MTD, although the sale price would be subject to the current market value of the Property (which 
could require MTD to “time the market” for the optimal sale price) but would not achieve MTD’s 
stated goal of achieving a long-term, sustainable return.  Similarly, a joint venture or partnership 
with a private development team could result in a long-term return to MTD; however, MTD would 
likely be required to take on significant financial risk as a “partner” in the development and 
operation of the project and such an arrangement may raise legal issues such as payment of 
prevailing wage and restrictions on public/private partnerships.  A non-subordinated ground lease 
allows MTD to receive a long-term return through the receipt of lease payments over 99 years, 
while minimizing risk to MTD as it is not a financial partner or investor in the project.  Therefore, 
the ad hoc committee believes a non-subordinated long-term ground lease is the best form of 
agreement to achieve MTD’s stated goals for the Property.  
 
For a non-subordinated ground lease to be financially superior to an outright sale of the property, 
the lease payments over time need to exceed the estimated monthly income that would be 
generated by interest if the land sale value were placed in a comparable, secure, guaranteed 
investment, such as a series of 30-year Treasury bonds (the 30-year US Treasury rate as of June 
22, 2022 was 3.25%).  The recent appraisal of the property (July, 2022) indicates a valuation of 
$22,280,000.  Therefore, a return of 3.25% requires an annual payment of $724,100, or more.  
The negotiated ground lease payment is the greater of 10% of gross collected income 
(percentage rent) or $950,000 (base rent), following lease-up and stabilization, exceeding this 
measure.  With the alternate rent of 10% of gross collected income, MTD is more protected 
against inflationary periods (Treasury bond rates remain constant while held, protecting against 
periods of low rates or deflation, but giving no protection during higher inflation).  Base rent is 
expected to increase over the course of the lease term, which is intended to protect MTD during 
times of decreased rent rates in the residential rental market.   



BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT 

5 
 

 
Discussions with appraisers and other brokers familiar with similar long-term ground leases 
indicate that it is common for normal lease payments to start either at Certificate of Occupancy, 
or more common, upon occupancy, since there is no income stream to the lessee until that time.  
Occasionally, there are “token” payments during these periods.  The terms of the ground lease to 
ConAm provide substantial income during these pre-stabilization periods, which exceeds industry 
norms. 
 
MTD’s Role in the Project 
 
The project is a “joint development” between MTD and ConAm; however, MTD’s role is limited to 
ensuring the project fosters transit use and integrates the allowed land uses at the property with 
MTD’s adjacent transportation resources.  The addition of over 300 residential apartments 
adjacent to Line #7 will increase ridership in the Eastern Goleta Valley and provide MTD the 
opportunity to expand its services throughout its service area.  MTD worked in coordination with 
the County of Santa Barbara to designate the property as a “priority housing site” so that the 
property could provide MTD the opportunity to integrate a new housing project with its existing 
service lines.  This way residents at the new project will have the ability to use MTD transit right 
next to them.  MTD has required the project provide no less than 15% of the total units as 
affordable.  This far exceeds the amount of affordable housing that would be required under 
applicable state and local laws.  MTD believes a mix of affordability levels will provide MTD the 
best opportunity to increase transit services and ridership in the area.    
 
MTD has set the general parameters for the proposed project through the RFQ/RFP to ensure 
the project provides housing at a variety of affordability levels and ensures easy access to Line 
#7.  The project will bring new transit users to the property, which will allow MTD to increase its 
existing service lines and consider developing new lines in the area.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
To approve the Option to Ground Lease Agreement. 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
Resolution No. 2022- 
Option to Ground Lease  
 
 
G:\17707\0008\DOCS\NU7491.DOCX 
4881-8923-6005, v. 1 



 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 



RESOLUTION 
of the 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
of the 

SANTA BARBARA METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT 
 

 
WHEREAS, Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District, a public agency duly organized 
and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California (the "ENTITY"), has 
determined that it is in the best interest and to the advantage of the ENTITY to pursue 
the possible joint development of that certain real property owned by the ENTITY located 
at 149 North San Antonio Road and 4678 Calle Real in the County of Santa Barbara 
comprised of four legal parcels totaling approximately 18.93 acres (the “Property”); 
 
WHEREAS, California Public Utilities Code Section 99420 authorizes ENTITY to enter 
into agreements with private parties for the joint development of real property for purposes 
of residential uses that foster transit use or the integration of land use and transportation;  
 
WHEREAS, ENTITY issued a Combined Request for Qualifications/Request for 
Proposals (“RFQ/RFP”) to identify a potential development team to develop, construct 
and operate a transit-oriented residential project at the Property, as further described in 
the Option Agreement (the “Project”); and 
 
WHEREAS, at the conclusion of the RFQ/RFP, ConAm Re Investments, LLC (“ConAm”) 
was selected by the ENTITY’s Board of Directors to enter into negotiations for an option 
agreement for the Property; and 
 
WHEREAS, ENTITY finds that ConAm is qualified to enter into an Option Agreement for 
the Property, which provides ConAm the opportunity to pursue and secure the necessary 
entitlements, including without limitation all necessary environmental review required by 
the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), of the Project; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Option Agreement does not commit ENTITY to the Project and is 
expressly conditioned on compliance with CEQA and does not bind ENTITY to a definite 
course of action prior to CEQA compliance; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest and to the advantage of the ENTITY to enter into the 
attached Option Agreement in order to further pursue the possible joint development of 
the Project on the Property; and  
  
WHEREAS, all acts, conditions and things required by the laws of the State of California 
to exist, to have happened and to have been performed precedent to and in connection 

IN THE MATTER OF  APPROVING THE FORM 
OF AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF 
AN OPTION AGREMEENT FOR CALLE REAL 
PROPERTY 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-03 



with the consummation of the transactions authorized hereby do exist, have happened 
and have been performed in regular and due time, form and manner as required by law, 
and the ENTITY is now duly authorized and empowered, pursuant to each and every 
requirement of  law,  to consummate such transactions for the purpose, in the manner 
and upon the terms herein provided. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE ENTITY 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Findings. The ENTITY's Board of Directors hereby specifically finds and 
determines that the actions authorized hereby relate to the public affairs of the ENTITY 
and are authorized by the applicable laws and regulations governing the ENTITY. 
 
Section 2. Option Agreement. The Option Agreement, to be executed and entered into 
by and between the ENTITY and ConAm Re Investments, LLC, in the form presented at 
this meeting and on file with the ENTITY's Secretary, is hereby approved. The ENTITY's 
Board of Directors and/or Authorized Officers ("The Authorized Officers") are hereby 
authorized and directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the ENTITY, to execute 
and deliver to ConAm Re Investments, LLC the Option Agreement. 
 
Section 3. Other Actions. The Authorized Officers of the ENTITY are each hereby 
authorized and directed to execute and deliver any and all documents which are 
necessary in order to consummate the transactions authorized hereby and all such 
actions heretofore taken by such officers are hereby ratified, confirmed and approved. 
 
Section 5. Effective Date. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Santa Barbara Metropolitan 
Transit District this 6th day of September, 2022 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  _____________ 
NAYS:  _____________ 
ABSENT:  _____________ 
 
 
      
 _______________________________ 
 Chair, Board of Directors 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
4886-3793-0790, v. 1 







































































































































































































 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE: SEPTEMBER 6, 2022 AGENDA ITEM: #11 

DEPARTMENT: PLANNING 

TYPE: INFORMATIONAL 

PREPARED BY: HILLARY BLACKERBY ____________________ 
                     Signature            
 
REVIEWED BY: GENERAL MANAGER ____________________  
                          Signature            
 
SUBJECT: FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 ANNUAL RIDERSHIP & CUSTOMER 

SERVICE REPORT 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff requests that the Board of Directors receive a report regarding annual ridership and 
customer service statistics for FY 2021-22. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Staff will discuss factors affecting MTD’s systemwide ridership in FY 2021-22. Staff will also 
discuss recent ridership trends and the continuing recovery and impacts from the COVID-19 
pandemic. Customer service statistics from the fiscal year will also be discussed. 
 
ATTACHMENT: 

• Ridership Summary Report: FY 2021-22 
• Customer Service Summary Report: FY 2021-22 
• System Ridership Report: FY 2021-22 



 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 



 
 

1 

FY 2021-22 ANNUAL RIDERSHIP PERFORMANCE REPORT  

 

Ridership Summary 
For the Twelve-Month Period Ending June 30, 2022 

 
Ridership Performance Indicators 
 
Systemwide ridership during the fourth quarter (April through June) of FY 2021-22 totaled 
1,114,207 representing a 62.8% increase of approximately 467,166 riders from the same 
period of FY 2020-21. For the total FY 2021-22, total ridership was 4,082,287 
representing a 71.6% increase over FY 2020-21. This represents a significant rebound 
from unprecedented impacts caused by the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020 and 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
In the fourth quarter, revenue hours and miles were down as compared to the same period 
in FY 2020-21. On April 25, 2022, due to a bus operator shortage, service was reduced 
by approximately 12.9%. This included reduction of frequency on several lines and the 
suspension of the Line 16 (SBCC Shuttle). This is compared to service in the 4th quarter 



FY 2021-22 ANNUAL RIDERSHIP PERFORMANCE REPORT  

 

2 

of 2020-21, where K-12 booster services were back in service, but Lines 15x, 16, and 28 
remained suspended due to SBCC and UCSB campus closures. Despite a reduction in 
service over the same quarter in the prior year, we saw ridership grow by 62.8%. 
 

 
The chart below shows the top 5 lines by ridership in FY 21-22. While the chart below is 
year-to-date, top lines by ridership in the fourth quarter alone were, in order from highest 
ridership, Lines 11, 6, 24x, 2, and 28.  
 

 
As stated above, the systemwide average of passengers per revenue hour for the quarter 
is at 25.4 passengers per hour. Q4 saw an increase from Q3, which had 22 passengers 
per hour. The chart below shows the top 5 lines by passengers per hour in the fourth 
quarter, with the Line 28 (UCSB Shuttle) coming in first with 61.2 passengers per hour, 
followed by Line 27 (54.6), Line 24x (39.6), Line 11 (33), and Line 6 (24.8). All of these 
lines saw an increase in passengers per hour over the third quarter of FY 21-22.  
 

Time Period 
Total 

Passengers 
Revenue 

Hours 
Revenue 

Miles 

Passengers 
per 

Revenue 
Hour 

Passengers 
per Mile 

FY 20-21 Q4 684,312 44,116 534,037 15.5 1.3 
FY 21-22 Q4 1,114,207 43,755 533,186 25.5 2.1 

FY 20-21 YTD 2,378,516 172,895 2,099,365 13.8 1.1 
FY 21-22 YTD 4,082,287 182,936 2,237,671 22.3 1.8 



FY 2021-22 ANNUAL RIDERSHIP PERFORMANCE REPORT  

 

3 

Fiscal Year Numbers At-A-Glance 

 
 
 
 
 

  
 
The Fiscal Year Numbers At-A-Glance below show the numbers for the complete FY 
2021-22 over FY 2020-21. In FY 2020-21, there were varying levels of capacity 
restrictions on board MTD buses.   
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Top 5 Lines by  
Passengers per Hour, 4th Quarter 

 

9,793 
wheelchairs 

boarded 
-11.5% 

 

67,497 
bicycles 
carried 
-15.3% 

 

Total 
Ridership 
+71.6% 

 

At-Capacity 
Loads 

+161.4% 
 

Too Full to 
Board 
Loads 
-79.3% 

 



FY 2021-22 ANNUAL RIDERSHIP PERFORMANCE REPORT  

 

4 

Service Days and Student Ridership 
 
As shown in the table below, the total number of service days in the third quarter of FY 
2021-22 was the same as FY 2020-21, with one more weekday and one less Saturday in 
FY 2021-22. K-12 schools, SBCC, and UCSB were all open to in-person learning for the 
third quarter, though SBCC had approximately 45% of classes on campus and the rest 
online. This is in comparison to Q3 in FY 21 where all campuses were closed for the entire 
quarter. 
 

MTD SERVICE CALENDAR DAYS 
        
 FY 2022  FY 2021  Year to Date 

SERVICE DAYS Q4 YTD  Q4 YTD  Change 
Weekdays 64 251  64 249  2  
Saturdays 13 54  13 56  (2)  
Sundays 14 58  14 58  0  
Total 91 363  91 363  0 

        
 FY 2022  FY 2021  Year to Date 

SCHOOL DAYS Q4 YTD  Q4 YTD  Change 
SBCC 26 159  0  0  159 
UCSB 50 169  0  0  169 
Secondary 44 193  46  50  143 

 
 
On-Time Performance Indicators 
 
Since the acquisition and installation of the Clever Devices AVL system, Planning staff 
has been refining the tools used to measure on-time performance. MTD’s standard is to 
aim for better than 80% on-time performance (OTP). “On-time” is defined as no more than 
5 minutes late and no more than 1 minute early. Timeliness is tracked at scheduled 
timepoints on each line. The lines included in this assessment are all of MTD’s fixed-route 
lines (not counting booster services) in operation during the fourth quarter of FY 2021-22.  
 
In the fourth quarter, two lines fell below the 80% mark. Seventeen lines experienced 
90% or higher OTP. The two lines that experienced lower on-time performance were the 
Lines 20 (Carpinteria) and 27 (Isla Vista Shuttle). While staff is investigating the causes, 
some contributing factors are likely new freeway construction and heavy loads in Isla 
Vista, respectively. Variables that generally affect a line’s on-time performance include 
extended road construction projects, high passenger loads, heavy congestion, and route 
detours lasting a number of days. This can vary based on time of day. 
 



FY 2021-22 ANNUAL RIDERSHIP PERFORMANCE REPORT  

 

5 

 
 
When assessing the amount of service on a particular line, we can measure the number 
of trips that a given line takes in a quarter. The graphic below displays the amount of 
service provided by the lines hitting MTD’s goal of 80% or higher for on-time service in 
the fourth quarter of FY 21-22. 
 



 
 

Compliments: Documented praise of MTD Employee’s action; On-Time Performance: Complaints about buses running late; Too 
Full to Board: Complaints from passengers that could not board the bus; Driving Observations: Concerns regarding driving 
safety; Passenger Relations: Perceived negative treatment of passengers by an MTD Employee; Missed Passengers: Complaints 
that passengers were passed up at MTD authorized stops; Missed Stop: Complaint from passenger on board a bus where the 
driver did not stop at requested stop. 

 

 FY 2021-22 FOURTH QUARTER PERFORMANCE REPORTS 

Customer Service Report 
FY 2021-22 4th Quarter Customer Service Statistics 

 
MTD Performance Standard: Passenger complaints shall average no more than 1 complaint per 10,000 
MTD passenger boardings. 

FY 2021-22 Year-to-Date Customer Service Statistics  
for the 12 Month Period Ending June 30, 2022 

 

Compliments, 10, 14%

On-Time Performance, 
3, 4%

Too Full to Board, 0, 0%

Driving Observation, 20, 
28%

Passenger 
Relations, 26, 

37%

Missed Passenger, 12, 17%

Missed Stop, 0, 0%

Compliments, 28, 12%

On-Time Performance, 
20, 8%

Too Full to Board, 3, 1%

Driving Observation, 43, 
18%Passenger 

Relations, 92, 
38%

Missed Passenger, 47, 19%

Missed Stop, 10, 4%



FY 2021-22 FOURTH QUARTER PERFORMANCE REPORTS 

2 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22

Q4 Passenger Boardings
per Complaint

4th Quarter 
Compliments 
& Complaints 

49 Complaints 

10 Compliments 

FY 2021-22 YTD 
Compliments 
& Complaints 

215 Complaints 

28 Compliments 



1 

 

 
 
FY 2021-22 System Ridership Report for 4th Quarter 
and for the Twelve-Month Period Ending June 30, 2022 
 

 
Ridership by Fare Category (April 2022 – June 2022) 

 

 
     Source: MTD Passdat Program, MTD Transit Development Department, Planning Section 

 
 

Revenue Hours and Revenue Miles (April 2022 – June 2022) 
 

 
     Source: MTD Passdat Program, MTD Transit Development Department, Planning Section   

Fare Categories Apr 22 - Jun 22 Apr 21 - Jun 21  % Change FY 2021 - 2022 FY2020 - 2021 % Change

General Fare 161,493          97,164            66.2% 641,593         97,210          560.0%

Transfers 68,386            42,256            61.8% 293,871         42,746          587.5%

Full Fare Prepaid 1 194,176          95,685            102.9% 746,932         95,868          679.1%

Santa Barbara City College 35,124            1,918              1731.3% 132,127         2,128            6109.0%

Senior & Disabled Prepaid 2 129,120          61,680            109.3% 489,297         62,038          688.7%

Shuttle -                 -                 0.0% -                -               0.0%

UC Santa Barbara 364,575          16,255            2142.8% 1,132,050      16,443          6784.7%

Youth Prepaid 3 109,711          28,792            281.0% 442,882         29,119          1420.9%

Free 14,784            320,772          -95.4% 64,191           2,012,801     -96.8%

Special Pass Programs 543                369                47.2% 2,467            484              409.7%

Senior Cash 26,226            15,338            71.0% 100,404         15,432          550.6%

Persons with Disabilities Cash 3,901              2,793              39.7% 15,956           2,951            440.7%

Tokens 4,427              1,290              243.2% 15,149           1,296            1068.9%

Tap to Ride Transactions 1,741              -                 100.0% 5,368            -               100.0%

    Total 1,114,207       684,312          62.8% 4,082,287      2,378,516     71.6%

YTDQuarter

Metrics Apr 22 - Jun 22 Apr 21 - Jun 21  %Change FY 2021 - 2022 FY2020 - 2021 % Change

Passengers 1,114,207           684,312              62.8% 4,082,287          2,378,516         71.6%

Revenue Hours 43,755                44,116                -0.8% 182,936             172,895            5.8%

Passengers per Revenue Hour 25.5 15.5 64.2% 22.3 13.8 62.2%

Miles 533,186              534,037              -0.2% 2,237,671          2,099,365         6.6%

Passengers per Mile 2.1 1.3 63.1% 1.8 1.1 61.0%

YTDQuarter



2 

 
MTD System Ridership (April 2022 – June 2022) 

 

 
    Source: MTD Passdat Program, MTD Transit Development Department, Planning Section   

Apr 22 - Jun 22 Apr 21 - Jun 21  % Change FY 2021 - 2022 FY2020 - 2021 % Change

1 West Santa Barbara 59,863                 63,395                -5.6% 241,923               223,790               8.1%

2 East Santa Barbara 97,527                 92,086                5.9% 381,109               321,424               18.6%

3 Oak Park 31,710                 28,926                9.6% 122,074               100,585               21.4%

4 Mesa / SBCC 18,230                 16,257                12.1% 67,335                 57,463                 17.2%

5 Mesa / La Cumbre 17,516                 16,403                6.8% 70,796                 59,745                 18.5%

6 Goleta 114,456               94,968                20.5% 439,065               334,066               31.4%

7 County Health / Fairview 51,239                 42,558                20.4% 188,468               156,658               20.3%

10 Cathedral Oaks -                          -                         0.0% -                          -                          0.0%

11 UCSB 231,686               122,384              89.3% 814,062               435,920               86.7%

12x Goleta Express 28,148                 26,133                7.7% 122,581               91,624                 33.8%

14 Montecito 14,102                 12,483                13.0% 53,031                 48,145                 10.1%

15x SBCC / UCSB Express 19,003                 -                         100.0% 71,574                 -                          100.0%

16 City College Shuttle 3,239                   -                         100.0% 24,193                 -                          100.0%

17 Lower West / SBCC 19,603                 17,173                14.2% 73,504                 59,030                 24.5%

20 Carpinteria 69,594                 69,134                0.7% 282,811               245,071               15.4%

23 Winchester Canyon 10,111                 6,408                  57.8% 34,098                 20,611                 65.4%

24x UCSB Express 111,120               37,852                193.6% 360,787               122,798               193.8%

25 Ellwood 12,353                 9,680                  27.6% 44,911                 35,330                 27.1%

27 Isla Vista Shuttle 60,296                 13,175                357.7% 168,484               50,362                 234.5%

28 UCSB Shuttle 94,604                 -                         100.0% 321,373               -                          100.0%

36 Seaside Shuttle -                          -                         0.0% -                          -                          0.0%

37 Crosstown Shuttle -                          -                         0.0% -                          -                          0.0%

90 West Goleta Amtrak Shuttle -                          -                         0.0% -                          -                          0.0%

91 East Goleta Amtrak Shuttle -                          -                         0.0% -                          -                          0.0%

92 Santa Barbara Amtrak Shuttle -                          -                         0.0% -                          -                          0.0%

Booster Services 49,807                 15,297                225.6% 200,108               15,894                 1159.0%

1,114,207             684,312              62.8% 4,082,287            2,378,516            71.6%

30 Downtown Shuttle -                      -                     0.0% -                      -                      0.0%

34 Waterfront Shuttle -                      -                     0.0% -                      -                      0.0%

-                          -                          

   System Total 1,114,207             684,312              62.8% 4,082,287            2,378,516            71.6%

   11, 24x, 27, 28 UCSB Lines 497,706                     173,411                   187.0% 1,664,706                 609,080                    173.3%

   1, 2  East/West 157,390                     155,481                   1.2% 623,032                    545,214                    14.3%

   4, 5, 15x, 16, 17 Mesa Lines 77,591                       49,833                     55.7% 307,402                    176,238                    74.4%

   6, 11 State/Hollister 346,142                     217,352                   59.3% 1,253,127                 769,986                    62.7%

Downtown Waterfront Shuttles

Related Routes

YTDQuarter
LINE

   System Subtotal

Unknown



3 

MTD Passengers per Revenue Hour (April 2022 – June 2022) 
 

 
 

Source: MTD Passdat Program, MTD Transit Development Department, Planning Section 

Apr 22 - Jun 22 Apr 21 - Jun 21  % Change FY 2021 - 2022 FY2020 - 2021 % Change

1 West Santa Barbara 23.2                    22.6                    2.7% 22.2               20.0               11.2%

2 East Santa Barbara 24.1                    21.0                    14.6% 22.4               18.5               21.4%

3 Oak Park 13.2                    12.0                    10.7% 12.8               10.5               22.0%

4 Mesa / SBCC 16.0                    14.2                    12.8% 14.9               12.7               17.1%

5 Mesa / La Cumbre 11.0                    9.2                     18.5% 10.3               8.5                 21.7%

6 Goleta 24.8                    18.5                    34.4% 22.2               16.5               34.3%

7 County Health / Fairview 13.5                    11.1                    21.8% 12.4               10.3               20.5%

10 Cathedral Oaks -                       -                       0.0% -                   -                   0.0%

11 UCSB 33.0                    15.7                    110.0% 27.2               14.1               92.6%

12x Goleta Express 17.5                    14.6                    19.5% 17.6               12.8               37.0%

14 Montecito 11.2                    9.8                     14.7% 10.6               9.6                 10.5%

15x SBCC / UCSB Express 17.5                    -                       100.0% 16.9               -                   100.0%

16 City College Shuttle 17.5                    -                       100.0% 14.2               -                   100.0%

17 Lower West / SBCC 23.1                    20.1                    15.3% 21.8               17.5               24.5%

20 Carpinteria 16.8                    14.8                    13.8% 15.7               13.2               19.2%

23 Winchester Canyon 16.7                    10.8                    55.7% 14.3               8.7                 64.6%

24x UCSB Express 39.6                    12.1                    227.5% 29.6               9.9                 199.1%

25 Ellwood 17.2                    14.1                    22.0% 16.3               13.0               25.4%

27 Isla Vista Shuttle 54.6                    11.8                    361.9% 38.2               11.4               233.8%

28 UCSB Shuttle 61.2                    -                       100.0% 58.9               -                   100.0%

36 Seaside Shuttle -                       -                       0.0% -                   -                   0.0%

37 Crosstown Shuttle -                       -                       0.0% -                   -                   0.0%

90 West Goleta Amtrak Shuttle -                       -                       0.0% -                   -                   0.0%

91 East Goleta Amtrak Shuttle -                       -                       0.0% -                   -                   0.0%

92 Santa Barbara Amtrak Shuttle -                       -                       0.0% -                   -                   0.0%

Booster Services 69.5                    22.3                    211.8% 69.1               21.1               227.3%

25.4                    15.5                    63.9% 22.3               13.8               62.0%

30 Downtown Shuttle -                       -                       0.0% -                   -                   0.0%

34 Waterfront Shuttle -                       -                       0.0% -                   -                   0.0%

-                       -                       0.0% -                   -                   0.0%

   System Total 25.4                    15.5                    63.9% 22.3               13.8               62.0%

   11, 24x, 27, 28 UCSB Lines 39.9                          14.4                          176.8% 11.7                    33.1                    -64.8%

   1, 2  East/West 23.7                          21.6                          9.8% 16.4                    26.2                    -37.1%

   4, 5, 15x, 16, 17 Mesa Lines 16.0                          13.2                          21.0% 11.2                    27.1                    -58.8%

   6, 11 State/Hollister 29.8                          16.8                          77.0% 13.9                    29.0                    -52.2%

YTDQuarter
LINE

   System Subtotal

Related Routes

Unknown

Downtown Waterfront Shuttles



4 

     MTD “At Capacity” Loads (April 2022 – June 2022) 
 

 
     *Classified as a 30-foot vehicle with 10 or more standees, or a 40-foot vehicle with 20 or more. 
      Source: GFI Genfare, MTD Transit Development Department, Planning Section 

  

Apr 22 - Jun 22 Apr 21 - Jun 21  % Change FY 2021 - 2022 FY2020 - 2021 % Change

1 West Santa Barbara 1                       4                       -75.0% 19                      43                      -55.8%

2 East Santa Barbara 19                      5                       280.0% 57                      93                      -38.7%

3 Oak Park 6                       7                       -14.3% 8                       13                      -38.5%

4 Mesa / SBCC -                        1                       -100.0% -                        4                       -100.0%

5 Mesa / La Cumbre 2                       -                     100.0% 3                       1                       200.0%

6 Goleta 15                      10                      50.0% 36                      67                      -46.3%

7 County Health / Fairview 1                       1                       0.0% 3                       19                      -84.2%

10 Cathedral Oaks -                     -                        0.0% -                     -                     0.0%

11 UCSB 146                    19                      668.4% 345                    81                      325.9%

12x Goleta Express 1                       -                     100.0% 4                       11                      -63.6%

14 Montecito 4                       1                       300.0% 4                       9                       -55.6%

15x SBCC / UCSB Express 55                      -                     100.0% 112                    -                     100.0%

16 City College Shuttle -                     -                        0.0% 1                       -                     100.0%

17 Lower West / SBCC -                     4                       -100.0% -                     14                      -100.0%

20 Carpinteria 5                       5                       0.0% 13                      50                      -74.0%

23 Winchester Canyon 2                       -                        100.0% 3                       -                        100.0%

24x UCSB Express 51                      5                       920.0% 128                    7                       1728.6%

25 Ellwood -                     -                        0.0% 2                       -                        100.0%

27 Isla Vista Shuttle 37                      1                       3600.0% 76                      6                       1166.7%

28 UCSB Shuttle 34                      -                     100.0% 152                    -                     100.0%

36 Seaside Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                     -                        0.0%

37 Crosstown Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        0.0%

90 West Goleta Amtrak Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        0.0%

91 East Goleta Amtrak Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        0.0%

92 Santa Barbara Amtrak Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        0.0%

Booster Services 48                      2                       100.0% 132                    2                       100.0%

427                    65                      556.9% 1,098                 420                    161.4%

30 Downtown Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        0.0%

34 Waterfront Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        0.0%

   11, 24x, 27, 28 UCSB Lines 268                    25                      972.0% 701                    94                      645.7%

   1, 2  East/West 20                      9                       122.2% 76                      136                    -44.1%

   4,  5, 15x, 16, 17 Mesa Lines 57                      5                       1040.0% 116                    19                      510.5%

   6, 11 State/Hollister 161                    29                      455.2% 381                    148                    157.4%

-                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        0.0%

System Total 427                    65                      556.9% 1,098                 420                    161.4%

Quarter YTD
LINE

   System Subtotal

Unknown/Miscellaneous

Related Routes

Downtown Waterfront Shuttles



5 

MTD “Too Full to Board” Loads (April 2022 – June 2022) 
 

  
     * Indicates that passengers were refused service because a vehicle was too full to safely board. 
     Source: GFI Genfare, MTD Transit Development Department, Planning Section 

Apr 22 - Jun 22 Apr 21 - Jun 21  % Change FY 2021 - 2022 FY2020 - 2021 % Change

1 West Santa Barbara 13                      122                    -89.3% 51                      698                    -92.7%

2 East Santa Barbara 22                      224                    -90.2% 119                    1,627                 -92.7%

3 Oak Park 4                       59                      -93.2% 10                      616                    -98.4%

4 Mesa / SBCC -                        1                       -100.0% 1                       39                      -97.4%

5 Mesa / La Cumbre -                     2                       -100.0% 3                       65                      -95.4%

6 Goleta 10                      280                    -96.4% 68                      2,453                 -97.2%

7 County Health / Fairview -                        31                      -100.0% -                     302                    -100.0%

10 Cathedral Oaks -                     -                        0.0% -                     -                     0.0%

11 UCSB 288                    305                    -5.6% 741                    2,910                 -74.5%

12x Goleta Express 3                       13                      -76.9% 22                      179                    -87.7%

14 Montecito 1                       4                       -75.0% 3                       206                    -98.5%

15x SBCC / UCSB Express 39                      -                     100.0% 68                      -                     100.0%

16 City College Shuttle -                     -                        0.0% -                     -                     0.0%

17 Lower West / SBCC -                     2                       -100.0% 2                       44                      -95.5%

20 Carpinteria 1                       234                    -99.6% 36                      1,777                 -98.0%

23 Winchester Canyon 6                       2                       200.0% 12                      20                      -40.0%

24x UCSB Express 178                    27                      559.3% 538                    114                    371.9%

25 Ellwood -                     1                       -100.0% 1                       26                      -96.2%

27 Isla Vista Shuttle 181                    9                       1911.1% 283                    180                    57.2%

28 UCSB Shuttle 102                    -                     100.0% 320                    -                     100.0%

36 Seaside Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                     -                        0.0%

37 Crosstown Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        0.0%

90 West Goleta Amtrak Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        0.0%

91 East Goleta Amtrak Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        0.0%

92 Santa Barbara Amtrak Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        0.0%

Booster Services 10                      130                    -92.3% 74                      132                    -43.9%

858                    1,446                 -40.7% 2,352                 11,388               -79.3%

30 Downtown Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        0.0%

34 Waterfront Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        0.0%

   11, 24x, 27, 28 UCSB Lines 749                    341                    119.6% 1,882                 3,204                 -41.3%

   1, 2  East/West 35                      346                    -89.9% 170                    2,325                 -92.7%

   4,  5, 15x, 16, 17 Mesa Lines 39                      5                       680.0% 74                      148                    -50.0%

   6, 11 State/Hollister 298                    585                    -49.1% 809                    5,363                 -84.9%

-                        -                        100.0% 1                       -                        100.0%

System Total 858                    1,446                 -40.7% 2,353                 11,388               -79.3%

Unknown/Miscellaneous

Related Routes

Quarter YTD
LINE

   System Subtotal

Downtown Waterfront Shuttles



6 

MTD Bicycles Carried (April 2022 – June 2022) 
 

 
 

1 MTD electric shuttles cannot carry bicycles. 
 Source: GFI Genfare, MTD Transit Development Department, Planning Section 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Apr 22 - Jun 22 Apr 21 - Jun 21  % Change FY 2021 - 2022 FY2020 - 2021 % Change

1 West Santa Barbara 526                    480                    9.6% 1,681                 2,307                 -27.1%

2 East Santa Barbara 1,056                 1,491                 -29.2% 4,276                 6,134                 -30.3%

3 Oak Park 2                       2                       0.0% 21                      439                    -95.2%

4 Mesa / SBCC 228                    324                    -29.6% 799                    1,334                 -40.1%

5 Mesa / La Cumbre 346                    344                    0.6% 1,382                 1,795                 -23.0%

6 Goleta 2,643                 3,128                 -15.5% 10,052               13,791               -27.1%

7 County Health / Fairview 1,390                 1,420                 -2.1% 4,964                 5,697                 -12.9%

10 Cathedral Oaks -                     2                       -100.0% -                     2                       -100.0%

11 UCSB 4,233                 3,786                 11.8% 15,919               18,657               -14.7%

12x Goleta Express 1,240                 1,453                 -14.7% 5,302                 6,183                 -14.2%

14 Montecito 255                    303                    -15.8% 1,019                 1,377                 -26.0%

15x SBCC / UCSB Express 376                    -                     100.0% 1,098                 1                       109700.0%

16 City College Shuttle 25                      1                       2400.0% 190                    2                       9400.0%

17 Lower West / SBCC 187                    233                    -19.7% 606                    931                    -34.9%

20 Carpinteria 1,978                 2,228                 -11.2% 7,202                 9,516                 -24.3%

23 Winchester Canyon 247                    110                    124.5% 694                    663                    4.7%

24x UCSB Express 2,614                 2,152                 21.5% 9,589                 8,900                 7.7%

25 Ellwood 228                    208                    9.6% 761                    1,049                 -27.5%

27 Isla Vista Shuttle 196                    182                    7.7% 584                    866                    -32.6%

28 UCSB Shuttle 356                    -                     100.0% 1,210                 -                     100.0%

36 Seaside Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                     -                        0.0%

37 Crosstown Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        0.0%

90 West Goleta Amtrak Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        0.0%

91 East Goleta Amtrak Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        0.0%

92 Santa Barbara Amtrak Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        0.0%

Booster Services 42                      9                       366.7% 148                    9                       1544.4%

18,168               17,856               1.7% 67,497               79,653               -15.3%

30 Downtown Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        0.0%

34 Waterfront Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        0.0%

   11, 24x, 27, 28 UCSB Lines 7,399                 6,120                 20.9% 27,302               28,423               -3.9%

   1, 2  East/West 1,582                 1,971                 -19.7% 5,957                 8,441                 -29.4%

   4,  5, 15x, 16, 17 Mesa Lines 1,162                 902                    28.8% 4,075                 4,063                 0.3%

   6, 11 State/Hollister 6,876                 6,914                 -0.5% 25,971               32,448               -20.0%

-                        4                       100.0% 20                      6                       233.3%

System Total 18,168               17,860               1.7% 67,517               79,659               -15.2%

Related Routes

Unknown/Miscellaneous

Quarter YTD
LINE

   System Subtotal

Downtown Waterfront Shuttles



7 

MTD Wheelchairs Boarded (April 2022 – June 2022) 
 

 
 

Source: GFI Genfare, MTD Transit Development Department, Planning Section 

Apr 22 - Jun 22 Apr 21 - Jun 21  % Change FY 2021 - 2022 FY2020 - 2021 % Change

1 West Santa Barbara 248                    250                    -0.8% 837                    972                    -13.9%

2 East Santa Barbara 465                    526                    -11.6% 1,916                 2,473                 -22.5%

3 Oak Park 87                      88                      -1.1% 311                    491                    -36.7%

4 Mesa / SBCC 47                      41                      14.6% 170                    138                    23.2%

5 Mesa / La Cumbre 42                      30                      40.0% 170                    112                    51.8%

6 Goleta 404                    363                    11.3% 1,323                 1,466                 -9.8%

7 County Health / Fairview 358                    301                    18.9% 1,361                 1,267                 7.4%

10 Cathedral Oaks -                     -                        0.0% -                     -                     0.0%

11 UCSB 406                    351                    15.7% 1,451                 1,806                 -19.7%

12x Goleta Express 75                      81                      -7.4% 319                    324                    -1.5%

14 Montecito 41                      43                      -4.7% 149                    149                    0.0%

15x SBCC / UCSB Express 3                       -                     100.0% 12                      -                     100.0%

16 City College Shuttle 46                      -                        100.0% 240                    -                     100.0%

17 Lower West / SBCC 86                      59                      45.8% 248                    107                    131.8%

20 Carpinteria 330                    327                    0.9% 982                    1,357                 -27.6%

23 Winchester Canyon 5                       7                       -28.6% 15                      17                      -11.8%

24x UCSB Express 65                      44                      47.7% 196                    264                    -25.8%

25 Ellwood 6                       16                      -62.5% 29                      62                      -53.2%

27 Isla Vista Shuttle 13                      16                      -18.8% 41                      58                      -29.3%

28 UCSB Shuttle 7                       -                     100.0% 16                      -                     100.0%

36 Seaside Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                     -                        0.0%

37 Crosstown Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        0.0%

90 West Goleta Amtrak Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        0.0%

91 East Goleta Amtrak Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        0.0%

92 Santa Barbara Amtrak Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        0.0%

Booster Services -                     -                     0.0% 5                       -                     100.0%

2,734                 2,543                 7.5% 9,791                 11,063               -11.5%

30 Downtown Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        0.0%

34 Waterfront Shuttle -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        0.0%

   11, 24x, 27, 28 UCSB Lines 491                    411                    19.5% 1,704                 2,128                 -19.9%

   1, 2  East/West 713                    776                    -8.1% 2,753                 3,445                 -20.1%

   4,  5, 15x, 16, 17 Mesa Lines 224                    130                    72.3% 840                    357                    135.3%

   6, 11 State/Hollister 810                    714                    13.4% 2,774                 3,272                 -15.2%

-                        1                       0.0% 2                       1                       100.0%

System Total 2,734                 2,544                 7.5% 9,793                 11,064               -11.5%

Related Routes

Unknown/Miscellaneous

Quarter YTD
LINE

   System Subtotal

Downtown Waterfront Shuttles



 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE: SEPTEMBER 6, 2022 AGENDA ITEM: #12 

DEPARTMENT: GOVERNMENT RELATIONS 

TYPE: ACTION ITEM 

PREPARED BY: LILLY GOMEZ ____________________ 
                     Signature            
 
REVIEWED BY: GENERAL MANAGER ____________________  
                          Signature            
 
SUBJECT: CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE UPDATE 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff and MTD’s attorney request that the Board approve the recommended changes to the Conflict 
of Interest Code: 
 

• Sec. 6.1.5 – Modifying amount for disclosure from $470.00 to $500.00 

• Sec. 6.8.1 – Modifying amount for disclosure from $470.00 to $520.00 

• Appendix C - Designated Employees title and names. 
 

 
ATTACHMENT: 

• Conflict of Interest Code 



1 

Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District 
Conflict of Interest Code 

 
Sec. 1 Purpose and Applicability. 

 
As a governmental institution, the Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District (“District”) must 
be vigilant in its protection of the public trust. Public officials are bound to observe the highest 
standards of performance and to discharge faithfully the duties of their office, regardless of 
personal considerations.  The members of the Board of Directors hold office for the benefit of the 
public and their offices must not be used for the purpose of private gain. This Conflict of Interest 
Code (“Code”) is intended to prescribe standards of conduct designed to ensure the honesty and 
integrity of those persons governing the operation of the District. 

 
The Political Reform Act, Government Code section 81000, et seq., requires state and local 
government agencies to adopt and promulgate Conflict of Interest Codes. The Fair Political 
Practices Commission has adopted a regulation, California Code of Regulations, title 2, section 
18730, which contains the terms of a standard Conflict of Interest Code, which can be 
incorporated by reference, and which may be amended by the Fair Political Practices 
Commission to conform to amendments in the Political Reform Act after public notice and 
hearings. Therefore, the terms of California Code of Regulations, title 2, section 18730 and any 
amendments to it duly adopted by the Fair Political Practices Commission, along with the 
attached Appendix in which officials and employees are designated and disclosure categories are 
set forth, are hereby incorporated by reference and constitute the Conflict of Interest Code of the 
Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District. Nothing set forth herein is intended to be 
inconsistent with the regulations adopted by the Fair Political Practices Commission. 

 
Sec. 2 Definitions. 

 
Unless expressly defined herein or in Appendix A, the definitions contained in the Political 
Reform Act of 1974, regulations of the Fair Political Practices Commission (2 Cal. Code of Regs. 
sections 18100, et seq.), and any amendments to the Act or regulations, are incorporated by 
reference into this Code. Terms defined in Appendix A hereto are printed in bold type in this 
Code. 

 
Sec. 3 Public Official. 

 
As used, herein “public official” means members and alternates of the Board of Directors, 
designated employees of District, and consultants to and contractors of District required to file 
disclosure statements pursuant to this Code. 

 
Sec. 4 Statements of Economic Interests.  

 
Sec. 4.1 Designated Employees.  The persons holding positions of General Manager, 

Assistant General Manager, and Procurement Officer are designated 



2 

employees. All such employees have senior management positions. It has been 
determined that these individuals make or participate in decisions that may 
foreseeably have a material effect on financial interests.  These individuals 
are listed in Appendix C. 

 
Sec. 4.2 Place of Filing.  All members of the Board of Directors and all designated 

employees shall file statements of economic interests with the Secretary of the 
Board of Directors. The Secretary shall review all statements and, after 
consultation with District General Counsel, report to the Board of Directors 
any potential conflicts noted in the statements.  In addition: 

Designated employees may file their statements online using eDisclosure, 
which will submit the Form 700 to the County Clerk, Recorder and Assessor. 
Statements will be made available for public inspection and reproduction 
(Government Code Section 81008). Your Department/Agency’s filing official 
can give you access.  
Designated employees who file using a paper Form 700 shall file with the Code 
Agency. Upon receipt of the Statement filed by the designated employee, a copy 
shall be retained with the Code Agency and the original shall be forwarded to 
the County Clerk, Recorder and Assessor. 

 
Sec. 4.3 Time of Filing.  Statements shall be filed according to the following schedule: 

 
Sec. 4.3.1 Initial Statements.  All members of the Board of Directors and all 

designated employees employed by District on the effective date of 
this Code shall file statements within 30 days of that effective date. 
Thereafter, each person already in a position subsequently designated 
by an amendment to this Code shall file an initial statement within 30 
days after the effective date of the amendment. 

 
Sec. 4.3.2  Assuming Office Statements. All persons assuming designated 

employee positions after the effective date of this Code shall file 
statements within 30 days after assuming the designated position. 

 
Sec. 4.3.3 Annual Statements.  All designated employees shall file statements no 

later than April 1st of each calendar year. 
 

Sec. 4.3.4 Leaving Office Statements.  All persons who leave designated 
employee positions shall file statements within 30 days after leaving 
office. 

 
Sec 4.4 Statements for Persons Who Resign Prior to Assuming Office 

 
Sec. 4.4.1 Any person who resigns within 12 months of initial appointment, or 

within 30 days of the date of notice provided by the filing officer to file 



3 

an assuming officer statement, is not deemed to have assumed office of 
left office, provided he or she did not make or participate in the making 
of, or use his or her position to influence and decision and did not 
receive or become entitled to receive any form of payment as a result 
of his or her appointment. Such persons shall not file either an 
assuming or leaving office statement. 

 
Sec. 4.4.2 Any person who resigns a position within 30 days of the date of a 

notice from the filing officer shall do both of the following: 
 

(1) File a written resignation with the appointing power; and 
 

(2) File a written statement with the filing officer declaring under 
penalty of perjury that during the period between appointment 
and resignation he or she did not make, participate in the 
making, or use the position to influence any decision, or 
receive, or become entitled to receive, and form of payment by 
virtue of being appointed to the position. 

 
Sec. 4.5 Contents of Statements. 

 
Sec. 4.5.1  Contents of Initial Statements.  Initial statements shall disclose any 

reportable investments, interest in real property, income and 
business positions held on the effective date of the Code and 
income received during the 12 months prior to the effective date of 
the Code. 

 
Sec. 4.5.2 Contents of Assuming Office Statements. Assuming office 

statements shall disclose any reportable investments, interest in 
real property, income and business positions held on the date of 
assuming office, and income received during the 12 months prior 
to the date of assuming office. 

 
Sec. 4.5.3 Contents of Annual Statements.  Annual Statements shall disclose 

any reportable investments, interest in real property, income and 
business positions held or received during the previous calendar 
year provided, however, that the period covered by an employee’s 
first annual statement shall begin on the effective date of the Code 
or the date of assuming office, whichever is later. 

 
Sec. 4.5.4 Contents of Leaving Office Statements.  Leaving office statements 

shall disclose reportable investments, interest in real property, 
income and business positions held or received during the period 
between the closing date of the last statement filed and the date of 
leaving office. 



4 

 
Sec. 5 Manner of Reporting. 
 
Statements of economic interests shall be made on Form 700, attached hereto as Appendix B, and 
shall contain the following information: 

 
Sec. 5.1 Investment and Real Property Disclosure.  When an investment or an 

interest in real property is required to be reported, the statement shall 
contain the following: 

 
Sec. 5.1.1 A statement of the nature of the investment or interest. 

 
Sec. 5.1.2 The name of the business entity in which each investment is held, 

and a general description of the business activity in which the 
business entity is engaged. 

 
Sec. 5.1.3 The address or other precise location of the real property. 

 
Sec. 5.1.4 A statement whether the fair market value of the investment or 

interest in real property equals or exceeds Two Thousand Dollars 
($2,000.00), exceeds Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00), exceeds 
One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00), or exceeds One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00). 

 
Sec. 5.1.5. If the interest is a leasehold interest, identify the number of years 

remaining on the lease. 
 
Sec. 5.1.6. If the interest is a leasehold interest, identify the exact date the lease 

became effective or terminated if it did so during the period 
covered by the statement. 

 
Sec. 5.2 Personal Income Disclosure.  When personal income is required to be 

reported, the statement shall contain: 
 

Sec. 5.2.1 The name and address of each source of income aggregating Five 
Hundred Dollars ($500.00) or more in value, or Fifty Dollars 
($50.00) or more in value if the income was a gift, and a general 
description of the business activity, if any, of each source. 

 
Sec. 5.2.2  A statement whether the aggregate value of income from each 

source, or in the case of a loan, the highest amount owed to each 
source, was One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00) or less, greater than 
One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00), greater than Ten Thousand 
Dollars ($10,000.00), or greater than One Hundred Thousand 
Dollars ($100,000.00). 



5 

 
Sec. 5.2.3 A description of the consideration, if any, for which the income 

was received. 
 

Sec. 5.2.4  In the case of a gift, the name, address and business activity of the 
donor and any intermediary through which the gift was made; a 
description of the gift; the amount or value of the gift; and the date 
on which the gift was received. 

 
Sec. 5.2.5 In the case of a loan, the annual interest rate and the security, if 

any, given for the loan and the term of the loan. 
 

Sec. 5.3 Business Entity Income Disclosure.  When income of a business entity, 
including income of a sole proprietorship, is required to be reported, the 
statement shall contain: 

 
(1)  The name, address and a general description of the business activity 

of the business entity; and 
 
(2)  The name of every person from whom the business entity received 

payments if the filer’s pro rata share of the gross receipts from such 
person was equal to or greater than ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00). 

 
Sec. 5.4 Business Position Disclosure.  When business positions are required to be 

reported, a designated employee shall list the name and address of each 
business entity in which he or she is a director, officer, partner, trustee, 
employee, or in which he or she holds any position of management, a 
description of the business activity in which the business entity is engaged, 
and the designated employee’s position with the business entity. 

 
Sec. 5.5 Acquisition or Disposal During Reporting Period.  In the case of an annual 

or leaving office statement, if an investment of an interest in real 
property was partially or wholly acquired or disposed of during the period 
covered by the statement, the statement shall contain the date of 
acquisition or disposal. 

 
Sec. 6 Standards of Conduct for Public Officials. 

 
There are numerous laws and regulations which govern the conduct of public officials and which 
are applicable to District. When in doubt as to the applicability of any law or regulation or 
provision of this Code to any particular situation, the potentially affected person should request 
an advisory opinion from counsel to District. All persons subject to this Code shall be familiar 
with its provisions, including the following provisions that govern the conduct of all public 
officials: 

 



6 

Sec. 6.1 Public officials shall disqualify themselves from making, or participating 
in the making of, or in any way attempting to use their official position to 
influence, a governmental decision which they know or have reason to 
know will have a reasonably foreseeable material financial effect, 
distinguishable from its effect on the public generally, on the official or a 
member of his or her immediate family or on: 

 
Sec. 6.1.1 Any business entity in which the public official has a direct or indirect 

investment worth Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) or more. 
 

Sec. 6.1.2 Any interest in real property in which the public official has a direct 
or indirect interest worth Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) or more. 

 
Sec. 6.1.3 Any source of income, other than gifts and other than loans by a 

commercial lending institution in the regular course of business on 
terms available to the public without regard to official status, 
aggregating Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) or more in value provided 
to, received by or promised to the public official within 12 months 
prior to the time the decision is made. 

 
Sec. 6.1.4 Any business entity in which the designated employee is a director, 

officer, partner, trustee, employee, or holds any position of 
management. 

 
Sec. 6.1.5 Any donor of, or any intermediary or agent for a donor of, a gift or gifts 

aggregating Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) or more provided to, 
received by, or promised to the designated employee within twelve 
months prior to the time when the decision is made. 

 
Sec. 6.2 Public officials shall not be financially interested in any contract made by 

them in their official capacity. They shall not be purchasers at any sale or 
vendors at any purchase made by them in their official capacity. A contract 
made in violation of provision within Section 6 of this Code may be voided by 
the Board of Directors. 

 
Sec. 6.3 Public officials shall not engage in any employment or activity for 

compensation that is inconsistent or incompatible or in conflict with his or her 
duties as a Board member or employee (that is, which would interfere with the 
official’s ability to carry out official duties or exercise independent judgment 
on behalf of the public interest). Public officials shall not engage in outside 
employment or provide services for compensation where any part of those 
efforts will be subject to approval by the Board of Directors, or any other 
board, officer or employee acting on behalf of District. 

 
Sec. 6.4 No public official shall participate in a governmental decision in which he or 



7 

she has a close personal interest that would tend to impair the exercise of 
independent judgment in the public interest. 

 
Sec. 6.5 No public official shall hold another public office where the two offices are 

incompatible. 
 

Sec. 6.6 No public official of the District may solicit or accept, either directly or 
indirectly, any gift, gratuity, loan, or other item or service of value if either the 
discharge of his or her official duties would be influenced or he or she has 
been, is presently, or may in the near future be involved in any official act or 
action directly affecting the donor or lender. 

 
Sec. 6.7  Invitations, received from bidders or other parties involved in a pending 

procurement, for business lunches, parties, or similar functions shall be 
declined. This is intended to avoid any situation that may give an appearance 
of improper influence in District procurement activities. 

 
Sec. 6.8 No public official shall accept any honorarium from any source, if the public 

official would be required to report the receipt of income or gifts from that 
source on his or her statement of economic interests. This section shall not 
limit or prohibit payments, advances, or reimbursements for travel and related 
lodging and subsistence authorized by Government Code section 89506. 

 
Sec. 6.8.1 No public official shall accept gifts with a total value of more than 

$520 in a calendar year from any single source, if the public official 
would be required to report the receipt of income or gifts from that 
source on his or her statement of economic interests. 

 
Sec. 6.9 Notwithstanding the above, this section shall not apply to the following: 

 
Sec. 6.9.1 An occasional non-pecuniary gift of nominal value accepted in the 

ordinary course of a business meeting. 
 

Sec. 6.9.2  Unsolicited advertising or promotional material of nominal intrinsic 
value. 

 
Sec. 6.9.3 A gift, gratuity, favor, loan, or other thing of value when circumstances 

make it clear that an obvious long-standing social or family 
relationship, rather than a business relationship, is the motivating 
factor. 

 
Sec. 6.10 No public official or designated employee shall disclose or otherwise use 

confidential information acquired by virtue of his or her position or 
employment with the District for his or her or another person’s private gain. 
No Board member shall reveal information received in a lawful closed session 



8 

unless such information is required by law to be disclosed. 
 
Sec. 7 Legally Required Participation. 

 
No public official of District shall be prevented from making or participating in the making of 
any decision to the extent his or her participation is legally required for the decision to be made. 
The fact that the vote of a designated employee who is on a voting body is needed to break a tie 
does not make his or her participation legally required for purposes of this section. 

 
Sec. 8 Prohibitions Against the Use of Public Office for Personal Gain. 

 
No public official of District shall use for personal gain or advantage, District facilities, 
equipment, supplies, personnel or other things of value or his or her position or office to secure, 
for personal benefit, gifts, special privileges or exemptions. 

 
Sec. 9 Conduct When There May Be a Financial Interest. 

 
Public officials shall conduct themselves as follows whenever the Board member, employee or 
consultant has, or may have, a financial interest in making or participating in the making of, 
any governmental decision: 
 

Sec. 9.1 Board of Directors’ member: Unless his or her participation is legally 
required, when the matter comes up on the agenda, the Director shall 
disclose his or her interest, refrain from participating in any way in the 
decision making process, and withdraw from the room if the subject is 
being discussed in a closed session. 

 
Sec. 9.2 During any contract formation, a Director may not have any financial 

interest in any contract made by the District. Board of Directors are 
conclusively presumed to be involved in the making of all contracts under 
their Board’s jurisdiction. Any contract made when a Director has a 
financial interest will be void. Disclosure of any financial interest and 
disqualification of the Director from contract formation will not prevent 
the creation of a void contract.  Directors may engage in contract formation 
only when: (1) they have no financial interest; (2) they have a remote 
interest, (3) they have a noninterest; and/or (4) the contract involves a 
necessity. 

 
Sec 9.3 If designated employee has a remote interest, that employee shall not be 

deemed to be to have a financial interest in a contract entered into by the 
District if the fact of that interest is disclosed to the body of the Board of 
Directors, and is noted in the official records, and thereafter the Board of 
Directors authorizes, approves, or ratifies the contract in good faith by a 
vote of its membership sufficient for the purpose without counting the vote 
of the designated employee with the remote interest. 



9 

 
Sec. 9.4 Employees: The employee shall immediately report the nature of the 

matter and the existence of a conflict to his or her superior so that the work 
may be assigned to another employee. 

 
Sec. 9.5 Consultants: The consultant shall immediately report the nature of the 

matter and the existence of the conflict to the General Manager, who shall 
determine the action to be taken. 

 
Sec. 10 Contact with Vendors, Bidders, and Proposers. 

 
Prior to the issuance of a procurement solicitation, informational and research contacts with 
prospective vendors may be made for the purpose of gathering needed data. However, in making 
such contacts, District employees, officers, and agents shall avoid any commitment, or 
implication thereof, of a possible future contract. 

 
Accordingly, requests for substantial complimentary services or supplies which may imply an 
obligation on the part of District shall be avoided. Also to be avoided are requests for testing 
services, product samples or demonstrations, and free trips to examine vendor products. 
Whenever a procurement is in process, e.g., during the solicitation, evaluation, negotiation, and 
award phases, all contacts with potential contractors or vendors shall be made through the 
Procurement Officer. 

 
Sec. 11 Incompatible Uncompensated Activities. 

 
Sec. 11.1 Public officials may participate in outside activities for which they are not 

compensated, but are discouraged from participating in such non- 
compensated activities when any of the following subsections applies: 

 
Sec. 11.1.1 The activity involves a substantial commitment of time that 

interferes with the public official’s ability to timely discharge his 
or her official duties. 

 
Sec. 11.1.2 The activity involves matters which come regularly before the 

Board and would create a substantial conflict between private 
interest and the exercise of Board authority in the public interest. 

 
Sec. 11.2 A director may disqualify himself or herself in matters coming before the 

Board where the director concludes that participation would create the 
appearance of a conflict of interest. 

 
Sec. 12 Penalties for Violation. 
 
This Code has the force and effect of law. Designated employees violating any provision of this 
Code are subject to the administrative, criminal and civil sanctions provided in the Political 



10 

Reform Act, Government Code sections 81000-91015. In addition, failure to adhere to the 
provisions of this Code shall constitute a violation of District policy and shall subject the violator 
to disciplinary action up to and including termination as deemed appropriate by the District 
General Manager and/or Board of Directors. Any decision affected by a violation of the 
disqualification provisions of this Code has occurred may be set aside as void. 

 
Sec. 13 Transportation Passes and Discounts. 

 
Other than indicated below, the District may not grant, and Directors and/or designated 
employees may not receive, free passes or discounts for transit. The acceptance of a pass or 
discount by a public official, other than a Public Utilities Commissioner, shall work a forfeiture 
of that office. The Board of Directors or other employees may receive passes or discounts if such 
passes or discounts are provided to assist or enable them to perform a part of their official duties. 

 
Sec. 14 Post Employment Restrictions. 

 
Sec. 14.1 Post Employment Restriction for Board Members.  The District shall not 

employ or retain under contract for compensation any individual who has 
served as a Board member within the previous two years. No Board 
member who leaves his or her office and accepts a position of employment 
with, or as a contractor or consultant for, a current or future District 
contractor/consultant may participate in a project or provide any goods or 
services to the District, through the contractor or consultant, for a period 
of two years. 

 
Sec. 14.2 Post Employment Restrictions for Employees.  No employee who leaves 

his or her District position and accepts a position of employment with, or 
as a contractor of consultant for, a current or future District contractor 
(consultant, vendor, developer, etc.) may participate in a project or 
provide any goods or services to the District through the contractor, for a 
period of two years. The General Manager may, when it is in the overall 
best interests of the District, make exceptions in the case of employees 
who have retired. 

 
 
 
 



11 

Appendix A 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 
1. CONTRACT FORMATION: The following actions constitute involvement in 

contract formation: (1) Any involvement in preliminary discussions, reasoning, 
negotiations, planning, drawing or plans or specifications and solicitations of bids relating 
to a contract; or (2) participation in decisions to modify, extend or renegotiate an existing 
contract, including exercise of an option. 

 
2. CONSULTANT: Consultant shall be defined pursuant to 2 Cal. Code Regs. § 

18700(a)(2) for purposes of this code. A consultant is an individual who, pursuant to 
contract with a state or local agency: 

 
(A) Makes a governmental decision whether to: 

 
(i) Approve a rate, rule, or regulation; 

 
(ii) Adopt or enforce a law; 

 
(iii) Issue, deny, suspend, or revoke any permit, license, application, certificate, 

approval, order, or similar authorization or entitlement; 
 

(iv) Authorize the agency to enter into, modify, or renew a contract provided it 
is the type of contract which requires agency approval; 

 
(v) Grant agency approval to a contract which requires agency approval and 

in which the agency is a party or the specification for such a contract; 
 

(vi) Grant approval to a plan, design, report, study or similar item: 
 

(vii) Adopt, or grant agency approval or, policies, standards, or guidelines for 
the agency, or for any subdivision thereof; 

 
or 

 
(B) Serves in a staff capacity with the agency and in that capacity performs the same 

or substantially all the same duties for the agency that would otherwise be 
performed by an individual holding a position specified in the agency’s Conflict 
of Interest Code. 

 
Consultants shall be included in the list of designated employees and shall disclose 
pursuant to the broadest disclosure category in the code subject to the following limitation: 

 



12 

The Executive Director may determine in writing that a particular consultant, although a 
“designated position,” is hired to perform a range of duties that is limited in scope and 
thus is not required to fully comply with the disclosure requirements described in this 
section. Such written determination shall include a description of the consultant’s duties 
and, based upon that description, a statement of the extent of disclosure requirements. 
The Executive Director’s determination is a public record and shall be retained for public 
inspection in the same manner and location as this conflict of interest code. 

 
3. DESIGNATED EMPLOYEE: Any official of the District whose position is designated 

in this Code. 
 
4. DISTRICT:   The Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District. 

 
5. FINANCIAL INTEREST: For the purposes of Article IV of this Code, a designated 

employee has a financial interest in a decision if it is reasonably foreseeable that the 
decision will have a material financial effect, distinguishable from its effect on the public 
generally, or on any significant segment thereof, within the jurisdiction, on: 

 
(a) Any business entity in which the designated employee has a direct or indirect 

investment worth more than Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00). 
 

(b) Any real property in which the designated employee has a direct or indirect 
interest worth more than Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00). 

 
(c) Any source of income, other than loans by a commercial lending institution in the 

regular course of business, aggregating Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) or more 
in value received by or promised to the designated employee within twelve 
(12) months prior to the time when the decision is made; or 

 
(d) Any business entity in which the designated employee is a director, officer, 

partner, trustee, employee or holds any position of management. 
 

(e) Indirect investment or interest, as used to define financial interest, means any 
investment or interest owned by the spouse or dependent child of the designated 
employee, by any business entity controlled by the designated employee or by a 
trust in which the business entity is controlled by a designated employee if the 
designated employee has a substantial interest. A business entity is controlled by 
a designated employee if the designated employee, his or her agents, spouse and 
dependent children hold more than Fifty Percent (50%) of the ownership interest 
in the entity. A designated employee has a substantial interest in a trust when the 
designated employee, his or her spouse and dependent children have a present or 
future interest worth more than Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00). 

 
6. GIFT: Any payment to the extent that the consideration of equal or greater value is not 

received. Any person, other than a defendant in a criminal action, who claims that a 



13 

payment is not a gift by reason of receipt of consideration has the burden of proving that 
the consideration received is of equal or greater value. The term “gift” does not include 
informational material such as books, reports, pamphlets, calendars or periodicals. No 
payment for travel or reimbursements for any expenses shall be deemed “informational 
material.” 

 
7. INCOME: 

 
(a) Income means, except as provided in subsection (b), income of any nature from 

any source, including but not limited to any salary, wage, advance, payment, 
dividend, interest, rent, capital gain, return of capital, gift, including any gift of 
food or beverage, loan, forgiveness or payment of indebtedness, discount in the 
price of anything of value unless the discount is available to members of the public 
without regard to official status, rebate, reimbursement for expenses, per diem, or 
contribution to an insurance or pension program paid by any person other than an 
employer, and including any community property interest in income of a spouse. 
Income of an individual also includes a pro rata share of any income of any 
business entity or trust in which the individual or spouse owns, directly, indirectly, 
or beneficially, a Ten Percent (10%) interest or greater. 

 
(b) Income does not include: 

 
(1) Income, other than a gift, from any source outside the jurisdiction and not 

doing business within the jurisdiction, not planning to do business within 
the jurisdiction, or not having done business within the jurisdiction 
during the two years prior to the time any statement or other action is 
required under this Code. 

 
(2) Campaign contribution required to be reported under Chapter 4 of the 

Political Reform Act of 1974. 
 

(3) Salary and reimbursement for expenses or per diem received from a state 
or local government agency and reimbursement for travel expenses and per 
diem received from a bona fide educational, academic or charitable 
organization. 

 
(4) Gifts of informational material, such as books, pamphlets, reports, 

calendars or periodicals. 
 

(5) Gifts which are not used and which, within thirty (30) days after receipt, 
are returned to the donor or delivered to a charitable organization without 
being claimed as a charitable contribution for income tax purposes. 

 
(6) Gifts from an individual’s spouse, child, parent, grandparent, grandchild, 

brother, sister, parent-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, aunt, uncle or 



14 

first cousin or the spouse of any such person; provided that a gift from 
any such person shall be considered income if the donor is acting as an 
agent or intermediary for any person not covered by this paragraph. 

 
(7) Any devise or inheritance. 

 
(8) Interest, dividends or premiums on a time or demand deposit in a financial 

institution, shares in a credit union or any insurance policy, interest 
credited on employees’ contributions to public retirement plans, payments 
received under any insurance policy, or any bond or other debt instrument 
issues by any government or government agency. 

 
(9) Dividends, interest or any other return on a security which is registered 

with the Securities & Exchange Commission of the United States 
Government. 

 
(10) The value of gifts of hospitality including food, beverages or lodging 

provided to any person filing a statement of economic interest if such 
hospitality has been reciprocated within the filing period. “Reciprocity” as 
used in this paragraph includes the providing by the filer to the host of any 
consideration, including entertainment or a household gift of a reasonably 
similar benefit or value. 

 
(11) Income from a source which is a former employer if all income from the 

employer was received by or accrued to the designated employee prior to 
the time he or she became a designated employee; the income was 
received in the normal course of the previous employment; and there was 
no expectation by the designated employee at the time he or she assumed 
a designated position or resumed employment with the former employer. 

 
8. INTEREST IN REAL PROPERTY includes any leasehold, beneficial or ownership 

interest or option to acquire such an interest in real property within the jurisdiction if 
the fair market value of the interest is equal to or greater than Two Thousand Dollars 
($2,000.00). Interests in real property of an individual include a pro rata share of 
interests in real property of any business entity or trust in which the individual or spouse 
owns, directly, indirectly or beneficially, a Ten Percent (10%) interest or greater. For the 
purposes of Articles II and III of this Code, “Interest in Real Property” does not include 
the principal residence of the filer. 
 

9. INVESTMENT:   Any financial interest in or security issued by a business entity, 
including but not limited to common stock, preferred stock, rights, warrants, options, debt 
instruments and any partnership or other ownership interest, if the business entity or any 
parent, subsidiary or otherwise related business entity has an interest in real property 
within the jurisdiction, or does business or plans to do business within the jurisdiction 
of the District, or has done business within the jurisdiction at any time during the two 



15 

years prior to the time any statement or other action is required under this Code. No asset 
shall be deemed an investment unless its fair market value exceeds Two Thousand 
Dollars ($2,000.00).  Investment does not include a time or demand deposit in a financial 
institution, shares in a credit union, any insurance policy, any employee’s contribution to 
a public retirement plan or any bond or other debt instrument issued by any government 
or government agency.  Investments of an individual include a pro rata share of 
investments of any business entity or trust in which the individual or spouse owns,   
directly or beneficially, a Ten Percent (10%) interest or greater. 

 
10. LEGALLY REQUIRED PARTICIPATION: 

 
(a) A designated employee is not legally required to make or to participate in the 

making of a governmental decision within the meaning of paragraph 4.5 of this 
Code unless there exists no alternative source of decision consistent with the 
purposes and terms of the statute authorizing the decision. 

 
(b) Whenever a designated employee who has a financial interest in a decision is 

legally required to make or to participate in making such a decision, he or she 
shall: 

 
(1) Disclose as a matter of official public record the existence of the financial 

interest. 
 

(2) Describe with particularity the nature of the financial interest before he 
or she makes or participates in making the decision. 

 
(3) Attempt in no way to use his or her official position to influence any other 

public official with respect to the matter. 
 

(4) State the reason there is no alternative source of decision-making 
authority. 

 
(5) Participate in making the decision only to the extent that such participation 

is legally required. 
 

(c) This regulation shall be construed narrowly, and shall not be construed to permit 
voting to break a tie. 

 
11. MAKING GOVERNMENTAL DECISIONS:   A designated employee makes 

governmental decisions, except as provided in subsection (f)(1) herein, when he or she, 
acting within the authority of his or her duties: 

 
(a) Votes on a matter. 

 
(b) Appoints a person. 



16 

 
(c) Obligates or commits the District to any course of action. 

 
(d) Enters into any contractual agreement on behalf of the District. 

 
(e) Determines not to act, within the meaning of subparagraphs (a) through (d) above, 

unless such determination is made because of his or her financial interest. When 
the determination not to act occurs because of his or her financial interest, the 
designated employee’s determination not to act must be accompanied by 
disclosure of the financial interest in the manner prescribed in Section 4.3 of the 
Article IV of this Code. 

 
(f) The making of a governmental decision shall not include: 

 
(1) Actions of designated employees which are solely ministerial, secretarial, 

manual or clerical. 
 

(2) Appearances by a designated employee as a member of the general public 
before an agency in the course of its prescribed governmental function to 
represent himself on matters related solely to his or her personal interests. 

 
(3) Actions by designated employees or their representatives relating to their 

compensation or the terms or conditions of their employment or contract. 
 
12. NONINTEREST: 

 
(a) An officer or employee of the District shall not be deemed to be interested in a 

contract if his other interest is any of the following: 
 

(1) The ownership of less than 3 percent of the shares of a corporation for 
profit, provided the total annual income to him or her from dividends, 
including the value of stock dividends, from the corporation does not 
exceed 5 percent of his or her total annual income, and any other payments 
made to him or her by the corporation do not exceed 5 percent of his or her 
total annual income. 

 
(2) That of an officer in being reimbursed for his or her actual and necessary 

expenses incurred in the performance of official duty. 
 

(3) That of a recipient of public services generally provided by the public body or 
board of which he or she is a member, on the same terms ad conditions as if he 
or she were not a member of the board. 

 
(4) That of a landlord or tenant of the contracting party if such contracting party is 

the federal government or any federal department or agency, this state or an 



17 

adjoining state, any department of agency of this state or an adjoining state, 
any county or city of this state or an adjoining state, or any public corporation 
or special, judicial, or other public district of this state or an adjoining state 
unless the subject matter of such contract is the property in which such officer 
or employee as such interest as landlord or tenant in which event his or her 
interest shall be deemed a remote interest within the meaning of, and subject 
to, the provisions of Section 1091. 

 
(5) That of a tenant in a public housing authority created pursuant to Part 2 

(commencing with Section 34200) of Division 24 of the Health and Safety 
Code in which he or she serves as a member of the board of commissioners of 
the authority or of a community development commission created pursuant to 
Part 1.7 (commencing with Section 34100) of Division 24 of the Health and 
Safety Code. 

 
(6) That of a spouse or an officer or employee of a public agency in his or her 

spouse’s employment or officeholding if his or her spouse’s employment or 
officeholding has existed for at least one year prior to his or her election or 
appointment. 

 
(7) That of a nonsalaried member of a nonprofit corporation, provided that such 

interest is disclosed to the body or board at the time of the first consideration 
of the contract, and provided further that such interest is noted in it official 
records. 

 
(8) That of a noncompensated officer of a nonprofit, tax-exempt corporation, 

which, as one of its primary purposes, supports the functions of the body or 
board or to which the body or board has a legal obligation to give particular 
consideration, and provided further that such interest is noted in its official 
records. For purposes of this paragraph, an officer is “noncompensated” even 
though he or she receives reimbursement from the nonprofit, tax-exempt 
corporation for necessary travel and other actual expenses incurred in 
performing duties for his or her office. 

 
(9) That of compensation for employment with a governmental agency, other than 

the governmental agency that employs the officer or employee, provided 
that the interest is disclosed to the body or board at the time of 
consideration of the contract, and provided further that the interest is noted 
in its official record. 

 
(10) That of an attorney of the contracting party or that of an owner, officer, 

employee, or agent of a firm which renders, or has rendered, service to the 
contracting party in the capacity of stockbroker, insurance agent, insurance 
broker, real estate agent, or real estate broker, if these individuals have not 
received and will not received remuneration, consideration, or a 
commission as a result o the contract and if these individuals have an 



18 

ownership interest of less than 10 percent in the law practice or firm, stock 
brokerage firm, insurance firm, or real estate firm. 

 
(11) Except as provided in subdivision (b), that of an officer or employee of or 

a person having less than a 10 percent ownership interest in a bank, bank 
holding company, or savings and loan association with which a party to 
the contract has a relationship of borrower or depositor, debtor, or creditor. 

 
(b) An officer or employee shall not be deemed to be interested in a contract made 

pursuant to competitive bidding under a procedure established by law if his or her 
sole interest is that of an officer, director, or employee of a bank or savings and 
loan association with which a party to the contract has the relationship of borrower 
or depositor, debtor or creditor. 

 
13. PERSON: An individual, proprietorship, firm, partnership, joint venture, syndicate, 

business trust, company, corporation, associations, committee and any other organization 
or group of persons acting in concert. 

 
14. PUBLIC OFFICIAL: As used herein, public official means members and alternates of 

the Board of Directors, designated employees of District, and consultants to and 
contracts of District required to file disclosure statements pursuant to this Code. 

 
15. REMOTE INTEREST: As used in this article, remote interest means any of the 

following: 
 

(a) That of an officer or employee of a nonprofit corporation, except as provided in 
paragraph (8) of subdivision (a) of Government Code section 1091.5. 

 
(b) That of an employee or agent of the contracting party, if the contracting party has 

10 or more other employees and if the officer was an employee or agent of that 
contracting party for at least three years prior to the officer initially accepting his 
or her office. For purposes of this paragraph, time of employment with the 
contracting party by the officer shall be counted in computing the three-year 
period specified in this paragraph even though the contracting party has been 
converted from one form of business organization to a different form of business 
organization within three years of the initial taking of office by the officer. Time 
of employment in that case shall be counted only if, after the transfer or change in 
organization, the real or ultimate ownership of the contracting party is the same or 
substantially similar to that which existed before the transfer or change in 
organization. For purposes of this paragraph, stockholders, bondholders, partners, 
or other persons holding an interest in the contracting party are regarded as having 
the “real or ultimate ownership” of the contracting party. 

 
(c) That of an employee or agent of the contracting party, if all of the following 

conditions are met: 



19 

(1) The agency of which the person is an officer is a local public agency 
located in a county with a population of less that 4,000,000. 
 

(2) The contract is competitively bid and is not for personal services. 
 

(3) The employee or agent is not in a primary management capacity with the 
contracting party, is not an officer or director of the contracting party, and 
holds no ownership interest in the contracting party. 
 

(4) The contracting party has 10 or more other employees. 
 

(5) The employee or agent did not directly participate in formulating the bid 
of the contracting party. 
 

(6) The contracting party is the lowest responsible bidder. 
 

(d) That of a parent in the earnings of his or her minor child for personal services. 
 

(e) That of a landlord or tenant of the contracting party. 
 

(f) That of an attorney of the contracting party or that of an owner, officer, employee, 
or agent of a firm which renders, or has rendered, service to the contracting party 
in the capacity of stockbroker, insurance agent, insurance broker, real estate agent, 
or real estate broker, if these individuals have not received and will not receive 
remuneration, consideration, or a commission as a result of the contract and if 
these individuals have an ownership interest of 10 percent or more in the law 
practice or firm, stock brokerage firm, insurance firm, or real estate firm. 
 

(g) That of a member of a nonprofit corporation formed under the Food and 
Agricultural Code or a nonprofit corporation formed under the Corporations Code 
for the sole purpose of engaging in the merchandising of agricultural products or 
the supplying of water. 
 

(h) That of a supplier of goods or services when those goods or services have been 
supplied to the contracting party by the officer for at least five years prior to his 
or her election or appointment to office. 
 

(i) That of a person subject to the provisions of Section 1090 in any contract or 
agreement entered into pursuant to the provisions of the California Land 
Conservation Act of 1965. 
 

(j) Except as provided in subdivision (b) of Section 1091.5, that of a director of or a 
person having an ownership interest of 10 percent or more in a bank, bank holding 
company, or savings and loan association with which a party to the contract has a 
relationship of borrower or depositor, debtor or creditor. 



20 

 
(k) That of an engineer, geologist, or architect employed by a consulting engineering 

or architectural firm. This paragraph applies only to an employee of a consulting 
firm who does not serve in a primary management capacity, and does not apply to 
an officer or director of a consulting firm. 
 

(l) That of an elected officer otherwise subject to Section 1090, in any housing 
assistance payment contact entered into pursuant to Section 8 of the United States 
Housing Act of 1927 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 1437f) as amended, provided that the 
housing assistance payment contract was in existence before Section 1090 became 
applicable to the officer and will be renewed or extended only as to the existing 
tenant, or, in a jurisdiction in which the rental vacancy rate is less than 5 percent, 
as to new tenants in a unit previously under a Section 8 contract. This section 
applies to any person who became a public official on or after November 1, 1986. 

 
16. SOURCE OF INCOME:  Source of income, as used in subparagraph c of paragraph 

No. 3 of this Appendix “A” shall not include a former employer if all income from the 
employer was received by or accrued to the designated employee prior to the time he or 
she became a designated employee, the income was received in the normal course of the 
previous employment, and there was no expectation by the designated employee at the 
time he or she began employment or assumed office or renewed employment with the 
former employee. 



21 

Appendix B 
 

See Form 700 attached hereto. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



22 

Appendix C 
Designated Employees 

 
 

Designated Employees: 

 

General Manager:  Jerry Estrada 

 

Assistant General Manager:  Mary Gregg 

 

Director of Finance and Administration: Nancy Tillie 

 



 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank 



1  

To:   MTD Board of Directors  
From:  Jerry Estrada, General Manager  
Date:   September 6, 2022 
Subject:  General Manager’s Report 
 
We have a brand new Bus Operator in Training that will be going through his onboarding with 
MTD this coming Monday.  We welcome Nathaniel Hansen, and wish him a very long and safe 
career with MTD.  Additionally, our newest Operator in Training, James Arnold, successfully 
completed all of his training and has assumed his bid shift.   

Our Verification of Transit Training is set for the week of September 12.  This is compulsory 
continuing education required for those of us that hold a Class B Commercial License with a 
passenger endorsement.  These classroom sessions are scheduled over a 4-day period, at 
different times, to accommodate all of our operators various work schedules. 

Southern California Edison’s (SCE) general contractor, Cal Pacific, began construction on SCE’s 
portion of the Charge Ready Bridge project. Currently, the contractor is installing disconnect 
switches at each charger location and running conduit from those disconnects to where new 
switchgear will be located.   
 
As a result of potential production delays, staff requested extensions to Grant Agreements 
between MTD and various entities that committed funding to MTD’s New Flyer battery electric 
bus (BEB) build. The total grant funding anticipated for the project is almost $1.5 million. Each 
funding organization approved MTD’s extension request, ensuring all grant monies awarded to 
MTD for the New Flyer BEB can be utilized.  
 
MTD’s California Energy Commission (CEC) Blueprint Grant project team, which includes 
individuals from CALSTART and the City of Santa Barbara, completed and submitted two more 
deliverables to the CEC. The two deliverables, a Summary of Medium- and Heavy-Duty Zero 
Emission Vehicle Infrastructure Development and Deployment and an Outreach Plan, were 
submitted in late-July and mid-August, respectively.  The Summary of Medium- and Heavy-Duty 
Zero Emission Vehicle Infrastructure Development and Deployment provides a summary of 
electric vehicle charging and hydrogen fueling infrastructure throughout Santa Barbara and plans 
for future deployments.  The Outreach Plan details the project team’s plans for reaching out to 
community members to discuss various elements of the Blueprint Grant project and the City’s 
various climate and energy policies and actions.   
 
Staff has entered into negotiations with a firm that responded to MTD’s Request for Qualifications 
(RFQ) for On-Call Construction Management Services.  If awarded a contract, the firm will provide 
support and expertise for MTD’s growing portfolio of construction projects.  The firm will be able 
to perform constructability reviews, develop and track project schedules, draft detailed and 
accurate cost estimates, oversee complex construction activities, and much more.      
 
The team developing MTD’s Zero-Emission Bus Rollout Plan met with representatives from 
Southern California Edison (SCE), Santa Barbara Clean Energy (SBCE), and Central Coast 



2  

Clean Energy (CCCE) in mid-July.  The meetings provided critical information about electric 
vehicle (EV) charging rates (including demand chargers) and incentives for fleet electrification 
from SCE and the two local Community Choice Aggregation programs.  The information allows 
Stantec to project fuel costs as MTD transitions away from renewable diesel and draws more 
electricity from energy suppliers like SCE, SBCE, and CCCE.   
  
Staff submitted the required quarterly Federal Financial Reports and Milestone Progress Reports 
for the April to June quarter to FTA for MTD’s open federal awards. Staff also submitted the 
required monthly Ridership Activity reports and Safety and Security reports to FTA for the National 
Transit Database for June and July. 

Staff attended a Zoom meeting of the Technical Transportation Advisory Committee (TTAC) of 
the Santa Barbara County Association of Governments (SBCAG) on August 4. TTAC 
recommended that the SBCAG Board approve the fiscal year 2021/22 Local Surface 
Transportation Program (LSTP) apportionments and Amendment 13 to the 2021 Federal 
Transportation Improvement Program (FTIP). TTAC reviewed and provided comments on the 
Draft 2023 FTIP, received updates on activities of the California Transportation Commission, 
SBCAG’s Broadband Strategic Plan, and regional bike planning. 

General Manager Estrada executed two FTA Awards. The first was the FFY 2022 Section 5307 
Urbanized Area Formula Program award for a total of nearly $8.6 million. The second was for 
approximately $164,000 in FFY 2019 Section 5339(a) Buses and Bus Facilities Formula Program 
funds that were originally apportioned to the City of Lompoc. Lompoc was unable to obligate the 
funds, and FTA and Caltrans agreed to allow MTD to program the funds to avoid the loss of the 
funds to the County. 

Staff attended the “Understanding of the Uniform Grants Guidance Webinar” presented by 
Federal Grants Training earlier this month. Next month staff is scheduled to attend the National 
Transit Institute’s four day training session on the National Transit Database. Staff is the process 
of closing out FY2021-22 and progressing with the financial audit.  

Risk Department has completed all of the District’s FY2022-23 Insurance renewals. Currently 
preparing for the upcoming FY2023-24 insurance policy renewals. 
 
Bickmore’s Actuarial Study of the District’s self-insured workers’ compensation program is now 
complete. The programs reported losses were less than expected.  Total case reserves 
decreased by over $200K since the prior evaluation. Average claim size for FY2021-22 is 
currently projected to be 38% less than that of the average of the four prior years. 
 
 


	20220906 Agenda
	20220906 Item #4 Staff Report-Covid State of Emergency
	20220906 Item #4-Attachment 1-Covid-19 State of Emergency
	20220906 Item #4-Attachment 2-Executive Order N-1-22
	20220906 Item #5- Draft Minutes (20220823)
	20220906 Item #6- Cash Report 20220906
	Cash Report Cover Sheet
	ARsbmtd 20220906.pdf
	Accounts Receivable Report

	apsbmtd 20220906.pdf
	apsbmtd


	20220906 Item #10 Staff Report - Option Ground Lease (4881-8923-6005.1)
	Property History
	MTD owns four legal parcels totaling approximately 18.93 acres in the unincorporated area of Santa Barbara County (“Property”).  MTD purchased the Property in 1985 with the intent to one day develop a bus terminal; however, MTD acquired another site f...

	20220906 Item #10-Attachment 1 - Resolution Approving Option Agreement (4886-3793-0790.1)
	20220906 Item #10-Attachment 2 Option Agreement (Calle Real-San Antonio Rd
	20220906 Item #11 Staff Report - FY 21-22 Staff Report-Annual Ridership and Customer Service
	20220906 Item #11-Attachment 1 - Ridership Summary Report FY 2021-22
	20220906 Item #11-Attachment 2 - Customer Service Summary FY 2021-22
	20220906 Item #11-Attachment 3 - System Ridership Report FY 2021-22
	20220906 Item #12 Staff Report - Conflict of Interest
	20220906 Item #12-Attachment 1- Revised Conflict of Interest Policy (221490)
	Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District
	Conflict of Interest Code
	Appendix A
	DEFINITIONS
	7. INCOME:
	10. LEGALLY REQUIRED PARTICIPATION:
	11. MAKING GOVERNMENTAL DECISIONS:   A designated employee makes
	12. NONINTEREST:

	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Designated Employees

	20220906 GM Report



